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FUND MANAGER’S REPORT 

 

 

Category and type of Collective Investment Scheme 

Income Scheme/ Open end 

Objective of Collective Investment Scheme 

The objective of AWT - IF is to generate competitive returns by investing short to long term debt instruments and 
securities. 

Explanation as to whether the Collective Investment Scheme has achieved its stated objectives 

The collective investment scheme achieved its stated objectives. 

Benchmark(s) relevant to the Collective Investment Scheme 

Average of the 6M Kibor 
 
Comparison of the Collective Investment Scheme's performance during the period compared with 
the said benchmarks 
 
Months Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19 Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19 Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 

Performance 11.59% 15.34% 20.49% 24.32% 7.05% 13.57% 8.25% 10.62% 40.95% 41.19% -0.10% 6.27% 

Benchmark 13.54% 14.07% 13.97% 13.61% 13.49% 13.50% 13.49% 13.48% 12.33% 9.41% 7.94% 7.75% 

Diff -1.95% 1.27% 6.52% 10.71% -6.44% 0.07% -5.24% -2.86% 28.62% 31.78% -8.04% -1.48% 

 

Strategies and policies employed during the period under review in relation to the Collective 

Investment Scheme's performance 

During FY ‘2020 AWT-IF delivered 17.92%, return compared to its benchmark return of 12.15% denoting an out 

performance by 577 bps. AWT-IF has been one of the top performing funds in the Income fund category throughout 
the year thereby maintaining its consistent history. 

On June 30, 2020, the Net Assets of the fund stood at PKR 2,250 million, compared to PKR 977.74 in June 2019 
showing an increase of 130.23% during the year. 

During 4Q, the fund size improved by 9% from March 31, 2020 level of PKR 2,070.16 million. Weighted average time 

to maturity of the portfolio stood at 798 days by year end. The fund’s exposure in Government Securities was 13.84 
% of the net assets in PIBs and 32.59% in T-bills while exposure in TFC/Sukuk/ICP was 7.70% on June 30, 2020.  
Placement with the bank accounted for 5.56% of the portfolio by June 30, 2020.  

The fund’s Net Asset value (NAV per unit) on June 30, 2020 was PKR 106.62 as the fund distributed interim dividend 

of PKR 18 per unit on June 28, 2020 which was one of the highest divided paid to its unit holders in the income fund 
category. 

Collective Investment Scheme's asset allocation as at the date of the report and particulars of 
significant changes in asset allocation since the last report (if applicable) 
 

   

Portfolio Allocation  Jun-19 Jun-20 

Cash  60.71% 41.30% 

Placement with Banks & DFIs  15.15% 5.38% 

PIBs  8.68% 13.40% 
    

TFCs/Sukuks  12.90% 4.76% 

Others including receivables  2.58% 35.16% 

Total  100.00% 100.00% 



AWT Income Fund  

 

 

 

 
 
Collective Investment Scheme's performance 
 

 Fund 

Sharpe Ratio* 0.69 

Information Ratio (0.040) 

Standard Deviation* 15.83% 

Weighted Avg Maturity (Days) 798 
 

*Annualized 

·  

Total NAV and NAV per unit since the last review period 
 

 FY19  FY20 

Net Assets PKR Mn  977.74 2250.24 

NAV/unit (PKR)  105.64 106.62 
 

Economic Review 

Contraction in GDP in 4Q20- growth to rebound in FY21  

Economy suffered one of its major shocks from covid19 as lockdown situation from March-June led to contraction in 
GDP by 0.4% (provisional) during FY20. Agriculture sector recorded growth of 2.67%, while manufacturing and services 
declined by 2.64% and 0.59% respectively in FY20. Large scale manufacturing (LSM) declined by 10.17% in the year, 
while it began to improve on MoM basis in June showing an increase of 16.8% compared to May 2020. 

For next year, government is targeting GDP growth of 2.1% while IMF/World Bank growth forecast is 1%. We believe 
GDP growth now appears to be higher than what was initially estimated. In our view, GDP growth will surge to 3-4% 
level in FY21 as covid situation has largely been brought under control in the country as of late and we have seen 
pickup in economic activities with strong jump in industrial growth in July as evident from cement, steel, automobile, 
petroleum products sales numbers. As covid situation improves further, we are likely to see services sectors growth 
also picking up such as transportation, traveling, tourism, hotels, and restaurants. Agriculture sector was impacted by 
locust attack on crops on wider scale during past four months, however, if timely measures are taken growth could be 
revived in the current year.    

Decline in FBR taxes were cushioned by very higher surplus profits of SBP in FY20 

Tax collections during last four months fell sharply lower due to covid lockdown in the country. Total collections for the 
year were Rs 3.998 trillion as against the revised target of Rs 4.8 trillion (and start of the year target of Rs 5.5 trillion). 
June saw improved performance in tax collections as initially the target was set around 3.9trillion before the budget 
announcement. Non-tax revenues recorded major increase to Rs 1.448trillion (62% higher than the budget) mainly due 
to significant jump in surplus profit of SBP which was recorded at Rs 935bn. Other taxes were recorded at Rs 336bn. 
Thus total revenues collected during the year were Rs 5.782 trillion.  

Tax collection target for FBR at Rs 4.96trillion in FY21 from around 4trillion in the previous year is 23% higher. Most 
likely growth in these taxes could safely be assumed to grow at 15% (to Rs 4.6trillion) given the rebound in economic 
activities, however, 23% increase may be difficult to achieve. Many businesses and services sectors are operating at 
lower levels or partially operative, it seems quite unlikely that tax collections will show improvement in 1Q and most 
likely to remain at low level. Provided Covid situation comes under control by the end of 1Q, we can expect significant 
pickup in economic activities in subsequent quarters thus enabling FBR to see growth in tax collections. Non-tax 
revenues (under the lead of SBP profits) and other taxes have been projected to be around Rs 1.6 trillion in FY21 
compared to Rs 1.8 trillion in FY20,thus total revenues for FY21 are projected to increase to Rs 6.2 trillion compared 
to government own estimate of Rs 6.5tr.   

Debt burden will remain high in FY21 

Final numbers of year end June Pakistan debt position is not yet published. Till May 2020, central government has 
accumulated Rs 35 trillion in total debt. Domestic debt (excluding liabilities and private sector debt) is around Rs 24 
trillion and foreign debt is Rs 11 trillion. Total increase is around Rs3.3 trillion during the year, mostly reflecting the fiscal 
deficit of the year which forces the government to borrow more. In FY21, government has budgeted to raise external 
receipts of $14bn (Rs 2.2 trillion) during 2021, almost same amount as of last year. Out of this $8bn will be used for 
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repayment of old loans. At the same time, capital receipts are budgeted to increase by almost 51% to Rs 1.5 trillion. 
This includes borrowings through the issue of T-Bills, PIBs, Sukuks and NSS.  

Fiscal deficit will remain elevated  

Final figure of fiscal deficit for FY20 has come at 8.1% compared to earlier estimates of 9.1%. During the year, fiscal 
deficit has improved to 8.1% of GDP from 8.9% in the preceding year FY19. Fiscal deficit of Rs 3,376bn was plugged 
through domestic borrowing of Rs 2,480bn and external borrowings of Rs 896bn. The government has estimated to 
bring the deficit to 7.1% in FY21. However, there are less prospects of improvement in fiscal deficit in current year as 
we believe government has made its intentions very clear as it has begun to make allocations on development 
expenditures on priority base to help stimulate economic growth. With no room to cut current expenditures which will 
grow by around 10% along with extra spending on covid related expenditures and government is going ahead with 
spending on its planned development expenditures on dams and CPEC projects, therefore, we are not seeing any 
possibility of reduction in fiscal deficit and it is likely to stay around 8% of GDP. 

Significant improvement in current account deficit in FY20 

Current account deficit for the year ended June 2020 fell sharply lower by 78% to $2.96bn from $13.43 in the previous 
year. Major contributing factor in drastic reduction of C/A deficit was 18% decline in imports ($9.5bn) during the year to 
$42.4bn from $51.9bn. Exports also fell (7% decline to $22.5bn compared to $24.2 in FY19) during the year mostly 
impacted by covid lockdown period during March-June 2020.  Workers remittances during the year increased by 6.3% 
to $23.12 from $21.74 in the previous year. This is the first time in Pakistan history that the country earned more in 
remittances than its exports.  

In July exports have started to increase showing growth of 5.8% to $1.998bn from $1.889 in the preceding year while 
imports declined by 4.2% to $3.54bn from $3.696bn thus trade deficit reduced by 14.7% to $1.54bn in the first month 
of the new fiscal year. Going forward into FY21, while there seems to be less fear of increase in current account deficit 
at the moment given the relatively lower international oil prices, however, every economic recovery in the past has not 
been without significant jump in imports and we don’t see any reason why imports will not increase when there is pickup 
in domestic economic activities. If exports start to recover its lost ground and grow by around 7% along with stable 
remittances while growth in imports don’t overshoot say above10%, Pakistan will be able to keep a check on its current 
account deficit. Any decline in CA deficit which is mainly the result of contraction in imports is the sign of slow economic 
activity, and given the government emphasize on reviving economic growth we should see growth in imports will start 
appearing in coming months.  

SBP aggressive cuts in policy rate to 7%  

SBP kept the policy at higher level of 13.25% till March and only responded to decrease it after the covid hit the economy 
badly. During these four months the rate was brought down to 7%, one of the steepest rate cuts in the country’s history 
and compared to the rest of the world. Monthly CPI showed rising trend till January 2020 when it hit the highest level 
of 14.6% and then began its decline to 8.6% by June 2020. Average CPI for the year came at 10.74%.  

For next year, government and SBP own estimates indicate CPI to average between 7-8%. In the first month of July, 
CPI was recorded at 9.3%. Keeping in view, inflation expectations in the country there is no possibility for further cut in 
the policy rate during the remaining months of this fiscal year. At the same time, we don’t expect SBP will resort to 
tightening so soon during the year even if the rate of inflation is slightly above the target level. We expect SBP will keep 
the policy rate unchanged at 7% in the foreseeable future, perhaps during the whole of this fiscal year. Primary 
consideration for Pakistani central bank, like most of other central banks world over, is revival of economic growth after 
the havoc done by coronavirus which has pushed economic growth in negative in recent months due to lockdowns. 
Increasing the policy rate too soon in response to uptick in monthly CPI numbers will prove counterproductive to revive 
economic growth. Most importantly, if the balance of payment situation remains in control and current account deficit 
stays lower, SBP will have less worries over Rupee depreciation and will not be forced to push interest rates higher to 
maintain currency stability.   

Money Market & Fixed Income Review 

Since March 2020, SBP has reduced the policy rate from 13.25% to 7% in June as it moved aggressively to counter 
the negative impact of covid on the slowing economy. During FY’ 2020, the yield curve in the secondary market closed 
down in shorter tenor government securities TBILLS at 7.09%(-566 bps), 7.05%(-580 bps) and 7.05%(-608 bps) in 3m, 
6m and 12m tenors respectively. Similarly the longer tenor PIBs yields 3 year (-632 bps), 5 year (-577 bps) and 10 year 
(-503 bps) closed at 7.53%, 8.11% and 8.69% respectively.  
Longer term yields have started to move down much earlier than the central bank cuts from March 2020. Policy rate 
was increased once in July 2019 when it was revised upward by 100bps to 13.25%. After that increase earlier in the 
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year, yield curve had moved inverted with long term yields falling lower than short term rates as market started to expect 
no further increase in the policy rate. It took 9 months and the covid to hit us before SBP could move to bring the interest 
rates down. With bond prices gaining strongly during the course of the year, mutual funds having larger allocation to 
PIBs (such as our AWT Income Fund-with return of 18%) were the winners giving above average returns during the 
year. Moving forward into FY2021, we do not expect further cut in the policy rate from existing 7% in coming few 
months. The rate of inflation which is expected to stay in higher single digit (7-8%) doesn’t support further easing. Given 
this scenario of no change in the policy rate in the near term and yield curve expected range of 7-10% returns, the rate 
of returns on money market and income funds will fall in this broader range also. This is the new reality which investors 
in fixed income funds will have to adjust with in coming days. 

 
 

Distribution made out of Collective Investment Scheme 
 
 

Distribution 
 

Income distribution made by the Fund was Rs. 18.00 per unit on June 26, 2020 for FY20  

 NAV per unit as on  

 Cum - NAV (PKR) 124.55 

 Ex - NAV (PKR) 106.55 
 
Description and explanation of any significant changes in the state of affairs of the Collective Investment 
Scheme during the period and up till the date of the manager's report, not otherwise disclosed in the 
financial statements 
 
There were no significant changes in the state of affairs during the year under review. 

Unit Holder Pattern 
 

Category 
Number of Unit 
Holders 

Individuals 47.51% 

Bank/DFIs - 

Associates 9.91% 

Other Corporates 42.58% 

 

Circumstances that materially affect any interest of the unit holders  

Investment is subject to market risk 

Disclosure if the Asset Management Company or its delegate, if any, receives any soft commission (i.e. 
goods and services) from its broker(s) or dealer(s) by virtue of transactions conducted by the Collective 
Investment Scheme, disclosure of the following:- 
The Management Company and / or any of its delegates have not received any soft commission from its brokers / 
dealers by virtue of transactions conducted by the Fund. 
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PERFORMANCE TABLE / KEY FINANCIAL DATA

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

000's 000's 000's 000's 000's

Description

Net Assets 2,249,599  977,735 1,403,291 460,352 4,892,505

Net Income/(loss) 290,388     90,165 50,230 -12,349 424,799

Total return of the Fund 9.62 9.29 5.99 4.68 11.71

Total dividend distribution 18 8.75 5.95 - 12.22

Capital Growth 0.54 0.04 4.68 -0.51

Average Annual Return

One Year - in percentage 9.62% 9.29% 5.99% 4.68% 11.71%

Two Year - in percentage 9.46% 7.64% 5.34% 8.20% 14.34%

Three Year- in percentage 8.30% 6.65% 7.46% 11.12% 12.49%

Net assets value per unit - Rupees 106.62 105.64 111.31 105.02 102.94

Highest offer price per unit * 125.88 116.02 112.58 106.07 115.06

Lowest offer price per unit * 106.63 106.41 106.23 102.05 103.31

Year-end offer price per unit * 107.69 106.84 112.57 106.07 103.98

Highest repurchase price per unit * 124.63 114.72 111.31 105.02 113.92

Lowest repurchase price per unit * 105.57 105.22 105.04 101.03 102.28

Year-end repurchase price per unit * 106.62 105.64 111.31 105.02 102.94

Final distribution per unit - - 6.25 0 2.64

Announcement date - - 6-Jul-18 - 9-Aug-16

First Interim distribution per unit 18 9.19 - - 7.1

Announcement date 26-Jun-20 28-Jun-19 - - 24-Jun-16

Second Interim distribution per unit - - - 4.23

Announcement date - - - 29-Jun-16

Total Distribution as % of par value - - - 13.97

Number of units in issue - Number 21,099,226 9,255,140 12,606,780 4,383,599 47,526,301

Notes:

*AWT Income Fund was launched on August 10, 2012.

* Past performance is not necessarily indicative of future performance and 

that certificate prices and investment returns may go down, as well as up.
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AWT Income Fund 

Statement of Assets and Liabilities 
As at 30 June 2020 

Assets 

Note  

2020 2019 

(Rupees in O00)  

Bank balances 5 915,586 624,995 

Investments 6 1,393,837 375,842 

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 7 25,636 24,819 

Total assets 2,335,059 1,025,656 

Liabilities 

Payable to AWT Investments Limited - Management Company 8 11,946 3,259 

Payable to the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee 9 172 160 

Annual fee payable to the Securities and Exchange Commission 

of Pakistan 10 363 769 

Accrued expenses and other liabilities 11 72,979 43,733 

Total liabilities 85,460 47,921 

Net assets 2,249,599 977,735 

Unit ho1ders fund (as per statement attached) 2,249,599 977,735 

Comtingencies and Commitments 12 

(Number)  

Number of units in issue 13 21,099,226 9,255,140 

(Rupees)  

Net assets value per unit 106.62 105.64 

The annexed notes from 1 to 23 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

/hief Executive Officer 

For AWT Investments Limited 

(Management Company) 

Chief Financial Officer Director 



tive Officer 

AWT Income Fund 

Income Statement 

For the year ended 30 June 2020 

Income 

Return / mark-up calculated using the effective interest method: 

Note  

2020 2019 

(Rupees in 000)  

- Bank balances at amortised cost 77,352 65.579 

- Clean placements at amortised cost 701 

- Term deposit receipts - Held at amortised cost 10,694 15,014 

- Government Securities - Held at fair value through profit or loss 108,879 979 

- Sukuk certificates / Term Finance Certificates - Held at fair value through profit or loss 17,346 14,525 

- Commercial Paper - Held at amortised cost 2,568 4,533 

- Certificate of Musharika - Held at amortised cost 4,579 

Net realised gain on sale of investments 93,386 1.313 

Net unrealised gain on revaluation of investments at fair value through profit or loss 17,599 291 

Total income 327,824 107,514 

Expenses 

Remuneration of the Management Company 8.1 18,159 10,247 

Sindh Sales Tax on the Management Company's remuneration 8.2 2,361 1,332 

Remuneration of the Trustee 9.1 1,362 1,688 

Sindh Sales Tax on Trustee's remuneration 9.2 177 219 

Annual fee to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 10 363 769 

Selling, marketing and back office expenses 7,338 

Annual listing fee 27 27 

Stability rating fee 352 337 

Auditors' remuneration 14 290 335 

Settlement and bank charges 1,081 555 

Total operating expenses 31,510 15,509 

Net income from operating activities 296,314 92,005 

Provision for Sindh Workers Welfare Fund 11.2 (5,926) (1,840) 

Net income for the year before taxation 290,388 90,165 

Taxation 16 

Net income for the year 290,388 90,165 

Allocation of net income for the year after taxation 

Net income for the year after taxation 290,388 90,165 

Income already paid on units redeemed (98,460) (31,198) 

Accounting income available for distribution 191,928 58,967 

Accounting income available for distribution 

- Relating to capital gains 53,569 291 

- Excluding capital gains 138,359 58,676 

191,928 58,967 

The annexed notes from 1 to 23 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

For AWT Investments Limited 

(Management Company) 

Chief Financial Officer Director 



Chief Financial Officer Director ief E - cutive Officer 

AWT Income Fund 

Statement of Comprehensive Income 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

2020 209 

(Rupees in '000)  

Net income for the year after taxation 290,388 90,165 

Other comprehensive income for the year 

Total comprehensive income for the year 

The annexed notes from 1 to 23 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

wJ- 

For AWT Investments Limited 

(Management Company) 

r 
L 

290,388 90,165 



For AWT Investments Limited 

(Management Company) 

Chief Financial Officer Director let Execu lye Officer 

AWT Income Fund 

Statement of Movement in Unit Holders Fund 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

Note 

2020 2019 

Value Undistributed Total Value Undistributed Total 

income income 

(Rupees in 000)  

Net assets at beginning of the year 1,053,352 (75,617) 977,735 1,459,213 (55,9211 1,403,292 

Issuance of 34,020,071 units (2019: 6,242,630 units) 

- Capital value 3,593,880 3,593.880 993,449 993,449 

- Element of income 274,393 274,393 35,030 35,030 

Total proceeds on issuance of units 3,868,273 3,868,273 1,028,479 1,028,479 

Redemption of 22,175,985 units (2019: 10,855,024 units) 

- Capital value (2,342.671) (2,342,671) (1,345,2611 (1,345,261) 

- Element of loss (115.553) (98.460) (214.013) (10,2901 131,198) (31,198) 

Total payments on redemption of units (2,458.224) (98.460) (2,556,684) (1,355,5511 (31,198) 11,386,7491 

Total comprehensive income for the year 290.388 290,388 90,165 90,165 

Distribution during the period (135,137) (194,976) (330.113) (78,789) 178,6631 (157,452) 

(135.137) 95.412 (39,725) 178,789) 11,502 167,2871 

Net assets as at end of the year 2,328,264 (78,665) 2.249,599 1,053,352 (75,6171 977,735 

Undistributed (loss) I income brought forward: 

- Realized (loss) (154,697) 155,1 441 

- Unrealized (load / income 291 (7771 

(154,406) (55,921) 

Accounting income available for distribution: 

Relating to Capital gains 53,569 291 

Excluding capital gains 138.359 58,676 

191.928 58,967 

Distribution during the year 13 (194,976) 1157,452) 

Undistributed loss carried forward (157,454) (154,406) 

Undistributed loss carried forward comprises of: 

- Realized loss (175,053) (154,6971 

- Unrealized income / (loss) 17,599 291 

(157,454) 1154,4061 

(Rupees) lRupeesl 

Net assets value per unit as at the beginning of the year 105.64 111.31 

Net assets value per unit as at the end of the year 106.62 105.64 

The annexed notes from 1 to 23 form an integral part of these financial statements. 



AWT Income Fund 

Cash Flow Statement 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Note  

2020 2019 

(Rupees in '000)  

Net income for the year before taxation 290,388 90,165 

Adjustments for: 

Return I mark-up on; 

- Bank balances (77,352) (65,579) 

- Letters of placement (701) 

- Term deposit receipt (10,694) (15,014) 

- Government securities (108,879) (979) 

- Term finance certificates I  sukuks (17,346) (14,525) 

- Commercial Paper - Held at amortized cost (2,568) (4,533) 

- Certificate of Musharika - Held at amortized cost (4,579) 

Dividend Income on future transaction 11,466) 

Net unrealised gain on revaluation of investments at fair value through profit or loss (17,599) (291) 

Amortisation of deferred formation costs 

Provision for Sindh Workers Welfare Fund 5,926 1,840 

Net cash used in operating activities (228,512) (105,827) 

(Increase) / decrease in assets 

Investments - net (1,000,396) (5,127) 

Other receivables 10,500 (10,651) 

(989,896) (15.778) 

Increase / (decrease) in liabilities 

Payable to the Management Company 8,687 (338) 

Payable to the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited -Trustee 12 (29) 

Annual fee payable to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (406) 99 

Accrued expenses and other liabilities 23,320 (10,723) 

31,613 (10,991) 

Return on bank balances and placements received 75,186 65,402 

Return on government / debt securities received 130,336 32,674 

Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities (690,885) 55,645 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Proceeds from issuance of units 3,733,136 1,028,479 

Payment on redemption of units (2,556,684) (1,386,749) 

Dividend paid (194,976) (157,452) 

Dividend Income on future transaction 1,466 

Net cash flows from financing activities 981,476 (514,256) 

Net Increase I (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 290,591 (458,611) 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 624,995 1,083,606 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 5 915,586 624.995 

The annexed notes from 1 to 23 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

\,9 

For AWT Investments Limited 

(Management Company) 

Chief Financial Officer Director 
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AWT Income Fund 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the year ended 30 June 2020 

1. LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS 

1.1 AWT - Income Fund (Formerly Primus Investment Management Limited - Income Fund) (the Fund) has been 

established under a Trust Deed, dated June 20, 2012, between AWT Investments Limited incorporated under 

the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017) and the Central Depository Company 

of Pakistan Limited (CDC) as the Trustee, also incorporated under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 

(now Companies Act, 2017). Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) registered the fund as 

a Notified Entity on August 01, 2012, under regulation 44 of the Non Banking Finance Companies and Notified 

Entities Regulations, 2008 (NBFC Regulations). 

1.2 During the year ended June 30, 2014, the Fund was re-categorized from money market category to income 

fund category. SECP has approved the application for amendments related to above change in the first 

supplemental offering document via letter dated April 16, 2014. 

On July 26, 2017, SECP gave its approval for the change of the name of the Management Company from 

Primus Investment Management Limited to AWT Investments Limited. The change was made pursuant to the 

acquisition 70% shares of the Management Company by Army Welfare Trust (AWT). On August 02, 2018, 

AWT acquired further 30% shares of the Management Company from Pak Brunei Investment Company 

Limited. Now the Management Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of AWT 

1.3 The Management Company of the Fund has been licensed by the SECP to undertake Asset Management 

Services and Investment Advisory Services as a Non-Banking Finance Company under The Non-Banking 

Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2013 (NBFC Rules). The registered office of 

Management Company at 3th Floor, AWT Plaza, 1.1 Chundrigar Road, Karachi. 

1.4 The Fund offers units for public subscription on a continuous basis. The units are transferable and can also be 

redeemed by surrendering them to the Fund. The Fund is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. As 

per the offering document, the Fund shall invest in debt securities including government securities, 

commercial papers, certificate of musharika and other money market instruments. 

The Scheme is required to invest in cash and near cash instruments which include cash in bank accounts 

(excluding term deposits receipts) treasury bills not exceeding 90 days maturity, investment schemes specified 

by the SECP. The objective of the Fund is to generate competitive risk adjusted returns by investing in short, 

medium and long-term Shariah Compliant fixed income government securities up to a maximum limit of 100% 

with no minimum limit, non-traded securities including reverse repo, bank deposits, certificates of investments 

(COI), certificate of musharaka (COM) and anything over six months maturity which is not marketable security 

up to a maximum limit of 15% with no minimum limit. The Scheme can also invest in term deposits receipts, 

term finance certificates/sukuks, letter of placements, certificates of deposits, COM with financial institutions 

up to 75% with no minimum limit, commercial paper upto 75% with no minimum limit. The Scheme can also 

invest outside Pakistan subject to approval of SECP (maximum limit being 30% or cap of USD 15 million with 

no minimum limit. 

1.5 Title to the assets of the Fund is held in the name of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited as a 

Trustee of the Fund. 

1.6 Impact of COVID 19 

In March 2020, the World Health Organization (WHO) declared the outbreak of the novel coronavirus (known as 

COVID-1 9) as a global pandemic. The rapid spread of the virus has caused governments around the world to 

implement stringent measures to help control its spread, including, without limitation, quarantines, 'stay-at-home' 

or 'shelter-in-place' orders, social-distancing mandates, travel restrictions, and closures or reduced operations for 

businesses, governmental agencies, schools and other institutions. The industry, along with global economic 

conditions generally, has been significantly disrupted by the pandemic. 



The COVID-19 pandemic and associated impacts on economic activity had certain effect on the operational and 

financial condition of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2020 due to increase in overall credit risk pertaining to 

the corporate debt instruments' portfolios of mutual funds, subdued equity market performance due to overall 

slowdown in economic activity and continuity of business operations. However, to reduce the impact on the 

economy and business, regulators / government across the country have introduced a host of measures on both 

the fiscal and economic fronts from time to time. 

The management of the Fund is closely monitoring the situation, and in response to the developments, the 

management has taken action to ensure the safety of its employees and other stakeholders, and initiated a 

number of initiatives. 

The Management Company of the Fund expects that going forward these uncertainties would reduce as the 

impact of COVID-19 on overall economy subsides and have concluded that there is no impact on current financial 

statements of the Fund. 

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 

2.1 Statement of compliance 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as 

applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of: 

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting Standards 

Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; 

- Provisions of 'and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 along with part VIllA of the repealed 

Companies Ordinance, 1984; and 

Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulations) Rules, 2003 (the NBFC Rules) and Non-

Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the NBFC Regulations). 

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VillA of the repealed Companies 

Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules and the NBFC Regulations differ from the lFRS Standards, the provisions of and 

directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VlllAof the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the 

NBFC Rules and the NBFC Regulations have been followed. 

2.2 Basis of measurement 

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except that investments 

are stated at fair value. 

2.3 Functional and presentation currency 

These financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the functional and presentation currency of 

the fund. All financial information presented in Pak Rupees has been rounded off to the nearest thousand 

rupees, except otherwise stated. 

2.4 Critical accounting estimates and judgments 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in 

Pakistan requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of 

accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and 

associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are beleved to be 

reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about the 

carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ 

from these estimates. 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 

are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the 

period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. The areas where 

various assumptions and estimates are significant to the Funds financial statements or where judgment was 

exercised in the application of accounting policies are given below: 
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a) Judgments 

Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on 

the amounts recognised in the financial statements is included in note 4.2.1(i) - regarding the classification of 

investments. 

b) Assumptions and estimation uncertainties 

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a 

material adjustment in the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2020, is included in the following 

notes: 

- Note 4.2.1 (ii) - Valuation of investments 

- Note 4.2.1 (iv) - Impairment of financial assets and other assets 

3. Standards, interpretations and amendments to accounting and reporting standards that are not yet 

effective 

The following International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) as notified under the Companies Act, 

2017 and the amendments and interpretations thereto will be effective for accounting periods beginning on or 

after 01 July 2020: 

Amendment to IFRS 3 'Business Combinations' — Definition of a Business (effective for business 

combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of annual period beginning on or after 

1 January 2020). The IASB has issued amendments aiming to resolve the difficulties that arise when an entity 

determines whether it has acquired a business or a group of assets. The amendments clarify that to be 

considered a business, an acquired set of activities and assets must include, at a minimum, an input and a 

substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The amendments 

include an election to use a concentration test. The standard is effective for transactions in the future and 

therefore would not have an impact on past financial statements. 

Amendments to lAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and lAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in 

Accounting Estimates and Errors (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020). The 

amendments are intended to make the definition of material in lAS 1 easier to understand and are not 

intended to alter the underlying concept of materiality in lFRS Standards. In addition, the IASB has also issued 

guidance on how to make materiality judgments when preparing their general purpose financial statements in 

accordance with IFRS Standards. 

On 29 March 2018, the International Accounting Standards Board (the IASB) has issued a revised Conceptual 

Framework for Financial Reporting which is applicable immediately contains changes that will set a new 

direction for IFRS in the future. The Conceptual Framework primarily serves as a tool for the IASB to develop 

standards and to assist the IFRS Interpretations Committee in interpreting them. It does not override the 

requirements of individual IFRSs and any inconsistencies with the revised Framework will be subject to the 

usual due process — this means that the overall impact on standard setting may take some time to crystallize. 

The companies may use the Framework as a reference for selecting their accounting policies in the absence 

of specific IFRS requirements. In these cases, companies should review those policies and apply the new 

guidance retrospectively as of 1 January 2020, unless the new guidance contains specific scope outs. 

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform which amended IFRS 9, lAS 39 and IFRS 7 is applicable for annual financial 

periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020. The G20 asked the Financial Stability Board (FSB) to undertake 

a fundamental review of major interest rate benchmarks. Following the review, the FSB published a report 

setting out its recommended reforms of some major interest rate benchmarks such as IBORs. Public 

authorities in many jurisdictions have since taken steps to implement those recommendations. This has in 

turn led to uncertainty about the long-term viability of some interest rate benchmarks. In these amendments, 

the term 'interest rate benchmark reform refers to the market-wide reform of an interest rate benchmark 

including its replacement with an alternative benchmark rate, such as that resulting from the FSB's 

recommendations set out in its July 2014 report 'Reforming Major Interest Rate Benchmarks' (the reform). 

The amendments made provide relief from the potential effects of the uncertainty caused by the reform. A 

company shall apply the exceptions to all hedging relationships directly affected by interest rate benchmark 

reform. The amendments are not likely to affect the financial statements of the Fund. 



Amendments to IFRS-1 6- IASB has issued amendments to IFRS 16 (the amendments) to provide practical 

relief for lessees in accounting for rent concessions. The amendments are effective for periods beginning on 

or after 1 June 2020. with earlier application permitted. Under the standard's previous requirements, lessees 

assess whether rent concessions are lease modifications and, if so, apply the specific guidance on accounting 

for lease modifications. This generally involves remeasuring the lease liability using the revised lease 

payments and a revised discount rate. In light of the effects of the COVID-1 9 pandemic, and the fact that 

many lessees are applying the standard for the first time in their financial statements, the Board has provided 

an optional practical expedient for lessees. Under the practical expedient, lessees are not required to assess 

whether eligible rent concessions are lease modifications, and instead are permitted to account for them as if 

they were not lease modifications. Rent concessions are eligible for the practical expedient if they occur as a 

direct consequence of the COVlD-1 9 pandemic and if all the following criteria are met: 

- the change in lease payments results in revised consideration for the lease that is substantially the same 

as, or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately preceding the change; 

any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and 

- there is no substantive change to the other terms and conditions of the lease. 

Classification of liabilities as current or non-current (Amendments to lAS 1) effective for the annual period 

beginning on or after 1 January 2022. These amendments in the standards have been added to further clarify 

when a liability is classified as current. The standard also amends the aspect of classification of liability as non-

current by requiring the assessment of the entity's right at the end of the reporting period to defer the 

settlement of liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. An entity shall apply those 

amendments retrospectively in accordance with lAS 8. 

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to lAS 37) effective for the annual period 

beginning on or after 1 January 2022 amends lAS 1 by mainly adding paragraphs which clarifies what 

comprise the cost of fulfilling a contract, cost of fulfilling a contract is relevant when determining whether a 

contract is onerous. An entity is required to apply the amendments to contracts for which it has not yet 

fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the annual reporting period in which it first applies the 

amendments (the date of initial application). Restatement of comparative information is not required, instead 

the amendments require an entity to recognize the cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as 

an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings or other component of equity, as appropriate, at 

the date of initial application. 

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to lAS 16) effective for the 

annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Clarifies that sales proceeds and cost of items produced 

while bringing an item of property, plant and equipment to the location and condition necessary for it to be 

capable of operating in the manner intended by management e.g. when testing etc, are recognized in profit or 

loss in accordance with applicable Standards. The entity measures the cost of those items by applying the 

measurement requirements of lAS 2. The standard also removes the requirement of deducting the net sales 

proceeds from cost of testing. An entity shall apply those amendments retrospectively, but only to items of 

property, plant and equipment that are brought to the location and condition necessary for them to be capable 

of operating in the manner intended by management on or after the beginning of the earliest period 

presented in the financial statements in which the entity first applies the amendments. The entity shall 

recognize the cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an adjustment to the opening balance 

of retained earnings (or other component of equity, as appropriate) at the beginning of that earliest period 

presented. 

- The following annual improvements to IFRS standards 2018-2020 are effective for annual reporting periods 

beginning on or after 1 January 2022: 

IFRS 9 — The amendment clarifies that an entity includes only fees paid or received between the entity 

(the borrower) and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the entity or the lender on the 

other's behalf, when it applies the '10 per cent' test in paragraph B3.3.6 of lFRS 9 in assessing whether 

to derecognise a financial liability. 
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- IFRS 16—The amendment partially amends Illustrative Example 13 accompanying IFRS 16 by excluding 

the illustration of reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the lessor. The objective of the 

amendment is to resolve any potential confusion that might arise in lease incentives. 

- lAS 41 — The amendment removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of lAS 41 for entities to exclude 

taxation cash flows when measuring the fair value of a biological asset using a present value technique. 

3.1 Standards and amendments effective during the year 

There are number of new standards and amendments that are effective from July 01, 2019, however these do 

not have a significant effect on the Funds financial statements. 

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

4.1 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of profit and loss sharing account maintained with banks. Cash 

equivalents are short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash, 

are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and are held for the purpose of meeting short term 

cash commitments rather than for investments and other purposes. 

4.2 Financial assets 

4.2.1 Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial assets are recognised at the time the Fund becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 

instruments. These are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs except for financial assets carried at 

fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at 

fair value and transaction costs associated with these financial assets are charged to the Income Statement. 

i. Classification 

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost, FVOCI or FVTPL. 

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not 

designated as at FVTPL: 

- it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and 

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and 

interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

A debt security is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at 

F VT FL: 

it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows 

and selling financial assets; and 

its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and 

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Fund may irrevocably elect to 

present subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in OCI. This election is made on an investment-by-

investment basis. 

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at 

FVTPL. On initial recognition, the Fund may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the 

requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly 

reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise. 



Business model assessment 

The Fund makes an assessment of the objective of a business model in which an asset is held at a portfolio 

level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to management. 

The information considered includes: 

- the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. In 

particular, whether management's strategy focuses on earning contractual interest revenue, maintaining a 

particular interest rate profile or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets; 

- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Fund's management; 

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that 

business model) and its strategy for how those risks are managed; 

- how managers of the business are compensated (e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of 

the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected); and 

the frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and its expectations 

about future sales activity. However, information about sales activity is not considered in isolation, but as 

part of an overall assessment of how the Fund's stated objectives for managing the financial assets are 

achieved and how cash flows are realised. 

Financial assets that are held for trading or managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis 

are measured at FVTPL because they are neither held to collect contractual cash flows nor held both to 

collect contractual cash flows and to sell financial assets. 

Assessment of whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest 

For the purposes of this assessment on debt securities, 'principal' is defined as the fair value of the financial 

asset on initial recognition. 'Interest' is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit 

risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic 

lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as profit margin. 

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPPl, the Fund considers the contractual terms of the 

instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change 

the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making the 

assessment, the Fund considers: 

- contingent events that would change the amount and timing of cash flows; 

- leverage features; 

- prepayment and extension terms; 

- terms that limit the Fund's claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse loans); and 

- features that modify consideration of the time value of money (e.g. periodical reset of interest rates). 

ii. Subsequent measurement 

The following accounting policies apply to the subsequent measurement of financial assets: 

Financial assets at FVTPL 

Financial assets at amortised cost 

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net  gains and 

losses, including any profit / markup or dividend income, are 

recognised in income statement. 

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using 

the effective yield method. The amortised cost is reduced by 

impairment losses. Interest! markup income, foreign exchange 

gains and losses and impairment are recognised in income 

statement. 



Debt securities at FVOCI 

Equity investments at FVOCI 

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest / 

markup income calculated using the effective yield method, foreign 

exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in income 

statement. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI. On 

derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified 

to income statement. 

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are 

recognised as income in income statement unless the dividend 

clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. 

Other net gains and losses are recognised in 001 and are never 

reclassified to income statement. 

The fair value of financial assets are determined as follows: 

a) Debt securities (other than Government securities) 

Debt securities are valued on the basis of rates determined by the Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan 

(MUFAP) in accordance with the methodology prescribed by SECP for valuation of debt securities vide its 

Circular No. 33 of 2012 dated 24 October 2012. In the determination of the rates, MUFAP takes into 

account the holding pattern of these securities and categorises them as traded, thinly traded and non-

traded securities. The circular also specifies the valuation process to be followed for each category as well 

as the criteria for the provisioning of non-performing debt securities. 

b) Government securities 

The government securities are valued on the basis of rates announced by the Financial Markets 

Association of Pakistan. 

c) Equity securities 

The equity securities are valued on the basis of closing quoted market prices available at the Pakistan 

Stock Exchange. 

iii. Reclassifications 

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the period after the Fund 

changes its business model for managing financial assets. 

iv. Impairment of financial assets 

Financial assets at amortised cost 

Provision for non performing debt securities and other exposure is made in accordance with the criteria 

specified in Circular No. 33 of 2012 dated 24 October 2012 issued by SECP which are recently relaxed by the 

SECP amid ongoing situation of Covidl 9. However, the circular does not cover impairment requirements for 

government debt securities. Based on the past performance management considers that there is no 

probability of default as in any adverse situation State Bank of Pakistan has the right to discharge government 

obligations by issuance of currency notes. The provisioning policy has been duly formulated and approved by 

the Board of Directors of the Management Company. 

4.2.2 Regular way contracts 

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date - the date on which the Fund 

commits to purchase or sell the asset. 



4.2.3 Derecognition 

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or 

have been transferred and where the Fund has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. 

4.2.4 Offsetting of financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of Assets and 

Liabilities when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to 

settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

4.3 Financial liabilities 

Financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Fund becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 

instruments. These are initially recognised at fair values and subsequently stated at amortised cost. 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. 

4.4 Trade date accounting 

All regular way purchases and sales of investments are recognised on the trade date, i.e. the date on which 

commitment to purchase / sale is made by the Fund. Regular way purchases or sales of investment require 

delivery of securities within two days after transaction date as required by stock exchange regulations. 

4.5 Issuance and redemption of units 

Units issued are recorded at the offer price, determined by the Management Company for the applications 

received by the distributors / Management Company during business hours on that day. The offer price 

represents the net assets value per unit as of the close of the business day plus the allowable sales load, 

provision for transaction costs and any provision for duties and charges, if applicable. The sales load is payable 

to the investment facilitators, distributors and the Management Company. 

Units redeemed are recorded at the redemption price, applicable to units for which the distributors receive 

redemption applications during business hours of that day. The redemption price represents the net assets 

value per unit as of the close of the business day less any back-end load, any duties, taxes, charges on 

redemption and any provision for transaction costs, if applicable. 

4.6 Net assets value per unit 

The net assets value per unit disclosed in the statement of assets and liabilities is calculated by dividing the 

net assets of the Fund by the number of units in issue at the year end. 

4.7 Revenue recognition 

Realised gains / (losses) arising on sale of investments are included in the Income Statement on the date 

at which transactions take place. 

Unrealised appreciation / (diminution) arising on re-measurement of investments classified as financial 

assets 'at fair value through profit or loss' are included in the income statement in the period in which they 

arise. 

- Profit on bank deposits, term deposit receipts, mark-up / return on investments in debt securities and 

income from government securities is recognised using the effective yield method. 

4.8 Element of income 

Element of Income represents the difference between net assets value on the issuance or redemption date, as 

the case may be, of units and the Net Assets Value (NAV) at the beginning of the relevant accounting period. 



Element of Income is a transaction of capital nature and the receipt and payment of element of income is taken 

to unit holders fund; however, to maintain same ex-dividend net assets value of all units outstanding on 

accounting date, net element of income contributed on the issue of units lying in unit holders fund is refunded 

on units (refund of capital) in the same proportion as dividend bears to accounting income available for 

distribution. As per the guidelines provided by MUFAP (MUFAP Guidelines consented upon by SECP) the 

refund of capital is made in the form of additional units at zero price. Income already paid on redemption of 

units during the year are taken separately in the statement of movement in unitholders fund. 

MUFAP, in consultation with the SECP, has specified methodology for determination of income paid on units 

redeemed (income already paid) during the year under which such income is paid on gross element received 

and is calculated from the latest date at which the Fund achieved net profitability during the year. The income 

already paid (Element of Income) on redemption of units during the year are taken separately in statement of 

movement in unitholders fund. 

4.9 Taxation 

The income of the Fund is exempt from income tax under clause 99 of Part I of the Second Schedule to the 

Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 subject to the condition that not less than ninety percent of its accounting income 

for the year, as reduced by capital gains, whether realised or unrealised, is distributed among the unit holders, 

provided that for the purpose of determining distribution of not less than 90% of its accounting income for the 

year, the income distributed through bonus units shall not be taken into account. 

The Fund is also exempt from the provisions of section 113 (minimum tax) under clause hA of Part IV of the 

Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. 

The Fund provides for deferred taxation using the balance sheet liability method on all major temporary 

differences between the amounts used for financial reporting purposes and amounts used for taxation purposes. 

In addition, the Fund also records deferred tax asset on unutilised tax losses to the extent that it is no longer 

probable that the related tax benefit will be realised. However, the Fund has not recognised any amount in 

respect of taxation in these financial statements as the Fund distributes more than ninety percent of its 

accounting income for the current year and intends to continue availing the tax exemption in future years by 

distributing at least ninety percent of its accounting income for the year as reduced by capital gains, whether 

realised or unrealised, to its unit holders every year. 

4.10 Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the Fund has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is 

probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and reliable estimate of the amount 

can be made. Provision are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current best 

estimate. 

4.11 Dividend distribution 

Distributions declared subsequent to the year end reporting date are considered as non-adjusting events and are 

recognised in the financial statements of the period in which such distributions are declared. Based on MUFAPs 

guidelines (duly consented upon by SECP) distributions for the year is deemed to comprise of the portion of 

amount of income already paid on units redeemed and the amount of cash distribution for the year. 

The distribution per unit is announced based on units that were held for the entire period. The rate of distribution 

is adjusted for the effect of refund of capital if any based on the period of investment made during the year. 

Resultantly, the rate of distribution per unit may vary depending on the period of investment. 



6. 

4.12 Other assets 

Other assets are stated at cost less impairment losses, if any. 

4.13 Earnings per unit (EPU) 

Earnings Per Unit (EPU) has not been disclosed as in the opinion of the management, determination 

of weighted average units for calculating EPU is not practicable. 

5. BANK BALANCES Note 2020 2019 

(Rupees in '000)  

Profit and loss sharing accounts 5. 1 915,586 624,995 

    

5.1 These accounts carry profit rates ranging from 8% to 12% (30 June 2019: 4.5% to 12.09%) per 

annum. These also includes balance of Rs. 8.221 million (30 June 2019: Rs. 5.171 million) held 

with Silk Bank (related party) and carries the profit rate of 12.09% (30 June 2019: 12.09%) per 

annum. 

INVESTMENTS 

Investments by Category 

At fair value through profit or loss 

Government securities 

Note 2020 2019 

(Rupees in '000)  

- Pakistan Investment Bonds 6.1 311,375 88,834 

- Market Treasury Bills 6.2 733,408 

Term finance certificates and sukuk bonds 

- Term Finance Certificate - unlisted 6.3 50,000 50,000 

- Sukuk certificate - privately placed 6.4 35,350 45,000 

- Sukuk certificate - listed 6.5 6,568 10,528 

- Sukuk certificate - unlisted 6.6 18,750 26,480 

1,155,451 220,842 

Listed equity securities 6.7 

At amortised cost 

Term deposit receipts 6.8 175,000 80,000 

Commercial papers 6.9 63,386 

Certificate of musharika 75,000 

1,393,837 375,842 



(Number of Certificates)  (Rupees in '000)  

31,350 30,600 1,750 174,489 180,752 6,263 12.97 8.03 

10,250 9,250 1,000 106,618 105.229 (1,389) 7.55 4.68 

3,750 3,500 250 19,842 25,394 5,552 1.82 1.13 

300,949 311,375  10,426 22.34 13.84 

-3 Years 1,000 

- 5 years 

-10 years 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
6.1 Government Securities - Pakistan Investment Bonds 

Tenor 

As at 1 July Acquired Disposed As at 30 Carrying value Market value Unrealised Market value Market value 

Note 2019 during the during the June 2020 before as at 30 June gain / (loss) as % of total as % of net 

year year revaluation as at 2020 investments assets 

30 June 2020 

6.2 Government Securities - Market Treasury Bills 

Note As at 1 July Acquired Disposed As at 30 Carrying value Market value IJnrealised Market value Market value 

2019 during the during the June 2020 before as at 30 June gain! (loss) as % of total as % of net 

year year revaluation as at 2020 investments assets 

30 June 2020 

(Number of Certificates)  (Rupees in '000)  

Tenor 

- 1 Years 

-3 Months 

46,650 39,150 7,500 231,931 334,571 102,640 24.00 

10,000 6,000 4,000 493,064 398,836 (94,228) 28.60 

724,995 733,408 8,413 52.60 

14.87 

17.73 

32.60 

6.3 Term Finance Certificates - unlisted 

Note As at 1 July Acquired Disposed As at 30 Carrying value Market value Unrealised Market value Market value 

2019 during the during the June 2020 before as at 30 June gain / (loss) as % of total as % of net 

year year revaluation as at 2020 investments assets 

30 June 2020 

(Number of Certificates)  (Rupees in '000)  

Bank Al-Habib Limited (Face value of Rs. 5,000/- each) 6.3.1 10,000 10,000 50,000 50,000 

   

3.59 2.22 

            

6.3.1 These carries profit at six months KIBOR plus 1.5% resulting in profit rate of 9.17% as at the year end (30 June 2019: 14.55%l per annum at the year end. The instrument is a perpetual instrument. Interest is payable 

semi-annually. These certificates are unsecured. These certificates are not yet quoted by MUFAP and are valued at the amount disbursed, which value is not expected to be significantly different from the fair value. The 

enity and the term finance certificates have been rated 'AM-' and 'AA' respectively by PACRA. 

6.4 Sukuk Certificates (privately placed) 

Note As at 1 July Acquired Disposed As at 30 Carrying value Market value Unrealised Market value Market value 

2019 during the during the June 2020 before as at 30 June gain / (loss) as % of total as % of net 

year year revaluation as at 2020 investments assets 

30 June 2020 

(Number of Certificates)  (Rupees in '000)  

Aspin Pharma (Private) Limited (Face value of Rs. 

100,000/-each) 6.4.1 50 50 35,000 35,350 350 2.54 1.57 

        

6.4.1 These carries profit at three months KIBOR plus 1.5%. At the year end profit rate was 9.65% (30 June 2019: 14.37%) per annum. Interest is payable quarterly while the principal is payable quarterly in twenty equal 

installments of Rs. 2.5 million, starting from the fifteenth month of the issue (i.e 01 March 2019). These certificates are secured against a ranking charge on all present and future fixed assets (land, building, plant and 

machinery) of the company inclusive of 15% margin on the issue amount. These certificates are valued at the rate quoted by MUFAP. The entity and the sukuk instrument have been rated as 'A' respectively by the VlS. 

UPV 



- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
6.5 Sukuk certificate - listed 

Note As at 1 July Acquired Disposed As at 30 Carrying value Market value Unrealised Market value Market value 

2019 during the during the June 2020 before as at 30 June gain I (loss) as % of total as % of net 

year year revaluation as at 2020 investments assets 

30 June 2020 

(Number of Certificates)  •-------------------- (Rupees in '000)  

Hascol petroleum Limited (Face value of Rs. 5000/- each) 6.5.1 3.800 3,800 6,728 6,568 (160) 0.47 0.29 

6.5.1 This carries profit at three months KIBOR plus 1.5% resulting in profit rate of 12.61% 130 June 2019: 12.62%l per annum at the year end and will mature on 7 January 2022. Interest is payable quarterly while the principal 

is also payable quarterly at twent equal principal installments of Rs. 0.95 million. These certificates are secured against first pari-pasu charge over specific deports and retail outlets of the company inclusive of a 25% 

margin. These certificates at the year end are valued at the rate quoted by MUFAP. The entity and the sukuk instrument have been rated as BBB+' and 'BBB- respectively by the VIS. 

6.6 Sukuk certificate - unlisted 

Note As at 1 July Acquired Disposed As at 30 Carrying value Market value Unrealised Market value Market value 

2019 during the during the June 2020 before as at 30 June gain I (loss) as % of total as % of net 

year year revaluation as at 2020 investments assets 

30 June 2020 

(Number of Certificates)  (Rupees in '000)  

TPL Trakker Limited (Face value of Rs. 1,000,000/-each) 6.6.1 25 25 20,231 18,750 (1,481) 1.35 0.83 

6.6.1 This carries profit at one year KIBOR plus 3% resulting in profit rate of 12.71% (30 June 2019: 14.70%l per annum at the year end and will mature on 13 April 2021. Interest is payable quarterly while principal will be 

payable semi-annually in four equal principal installments of Rs. 6.25 million starting from October 2019. These certificates are secured against 55 million ordinary shares of TPL Properties limited owned by the company, 

charge by way of hypothecation of Rs. 750 million (inclusive of 20% margin ) over the hypothecated assets in favour of the trustee and a ranking charge ranking subordinate and subservient to the charge in favour of the 

existing creditors. These certificates at the year end are valued at the rate quoted by MUFAP. The entity and the term finance certificates have been rated as 'A- and 'A+ respectively by PACRA. 

6.7 Listed equity securities - At fair value through profit or loss 

As at 1 July Acquired Sold during As at 30 Percentage of Percentage of 

2019 during the year June 2020 total value of net assets (%) 

the year investments 

(%) 

Shares of listed companies - fully paid up ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each unless stated otherwise. 

ENGINEERING SECTOR 

Number of shares  

Amreli Steels Limited 306,500 306,500 

CEMENT SECTOR 

Cherat Cement Company Limited 217,000 217,000 

D.G. Khan Cement Company Limited 29,500 29500 

Fauji Cement Company Limited 501,000 501,000 

FERTILIZER SECTOR 

Fauij Fertilizer Company Limited 102,000 102,000 

PHARMACEUTICALS SECTOR 

The Searle Company Limited 4,000 4,000 

VANASPATI & ALLIED SECTOR 

Unity Foods Limited - 241,500 241,500 

TECHNOLOGY & COMMUNICATION 

TRG Pakistan Limited 96,500 96,500 

1,498,000 1,498,000 



5.38 3.33 

3.59 2.22 

3.59 2.21 

   

(Rupees in '000) 

75,000 

50,000 

50,000 

  

U MicroFinance Bank Limited 

Sindh Bank Limited 

Askari Bank Limited 

6.8.1 

6.8.2 

6.8.3 

 

75,000 

50,000 

50,000 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
The movement in equity securities represents spread transactions entered into by the Fund. The Fund purchases equity securities in ready settlement market and sells the securities in future settlement market on the same 

day, resulting in spread income / liossl due to difference in ready and future stock prices. 

6.8 Term Deposit Receipts - At amortised cost 

Note As at 1 July Acquired Matured As at 30 Percentage of Percentage of 

2019 during during the June 2020 total value of net assets (%) 

the year year investments 

(%) 

175,000 175.000 12.56 7.76 

6.8.1 This carries mark up rate of 14.50% per annum and will mature on September 14, 2020. 

6.8.2 This carries mark up rate of 7.30% per annum and will mature on July 29, 2020. 

6.8.3 This carries mark up rate of 8% per annum and will mature on July 02, 2020. 

6.9 Commercial Paper - At amortized cost 

Note As at 1 July Acquired Matured As at 30 Percentage of Percentage of 

2019 during during the June 2020 total value of net assets (%) 

the year year investments 

(%) 

(Rupees in 000) 

K-electric 6.9.1 - 63.386 

   

63,386 4.55 2.82 

6.9.1 This carries mark-up rate of 6.82% per semi annual per annum and will mature on September 10, 2020. The entity has been rated as A1+' by PACRA. 

7. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS & OTHER RECEIVABLES Note 2020 2019 

(Rupees in '000)  

Security Deposit to 

-Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited 100 100 

-National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited 2.500 2,500 

Return / markup receivable on: 

- Bank balances 4,728 2,562 

- Term deposits receipts 8.893 1,368 

- Term finance certificates / sukuks 1,142 1,882 

- Certificate of musharika 2,351 

- Government securities 8,122 3,405 

Cash margin with National Clearing Company of 

Pakistan Limited (NCCPLI 10,500 

Income tax recoverable 7.1 151 151  

25.636 24,819 

7.1 This pertains to tax erroneously collected by bank on markup on bank deposits which will be claimed on filing of tax return of the Fund. 

8. PAYABLE TO THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY Note 2020 2019 

(Rupees in '000)  

Management remuneration payable 8.1 2,024 830 

Sindh Sales Tax on Managements remuneration 8.2 2,584 2,429 

Payable against selling and marketing expenses relating to the Fund 8.3 7,338 -  

11,946 3,259 



8.1 Management Company has charged remuneration at the rate of 1% per annum based on the daily net assets of the Fund during the year 

ended June 30, 2020. Details of the movement in balance payable to the Managament Company is as follows. 

Details of the movement in the balance payable to the management company is as follows: 

2020 2019 

(Rupees in '000) 

Balance as of 1 July 830 1,168 

Remuneration for the year 18,159 10.247 

Paid during the year (16,965) 110,5851 

Balance as of 30 June 2,024 830 

8.2 Sindh Sales Tax has been charged at 13% (30 June 2019: 13%l on the management fee charged during the year. 

8.3 SECP vide S.R.O. 639 11)/2019 has substituted clause lsl and (vl of sub regulation 3 of regulation 60 and accordingly has removed cap of 

charging 0.1% and 0.4% per annum of average daily net assets on account of fee and expenses related to registrar services, accounting, 

operation and valuation services and selling and marketing expenses respectively, provided total expense ratio remains within the allowed 

limit. 

The Management Company has charged 0.518% per annum of the average daily net assets on account of selling and marketing expense 

from 29 October 2019 to 30 June 2020. 

9. PAYABLE TO THE CENTRAL DEPOSITORY COMPANY Note 2020 2019 

OF PAKISTAN LIMITED - TRUSTEE (Rupees in '000) 

Trustee remuneration 

Sindh Sales Tax on Trustee remuneration 

9.1 152 142 

9.2 20 18 

  

172 160 

     

9.1 With effect from July 01, 2019, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (The Trustee) is entitled to a monthly remuneration 

0.075% of net assets for services rendered to the Fund. 

Details of the movement in balance payable to the trustee is as follows. 2020 2019 

(Rupees in '000)  

Balance as of 1 July 142 171 

Remuneration for the period 1,362 1,688 

Paid during the period (1,352) 11,717) 

Balance as of 30 June 152 142 

assets of the Fund, applicable from July 01, 2019. 

ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES Note 2020 2019 

(Rupees in '000)  

Federal Excise Duty 11.1 20.813 20,813 

Provision of Sindh Worker Welfare Fund (S\NWFI 11.2 19,136 13.210 

Auditors' remuneration payable 192 221 

Dividend payable 9,490 3,981 

Payable against redemption of units - - 

Printing and stationary expenses 20 25 

Withholding tax payable 21,594 4,906 

Other payable 1,734 577 

72,979 43,733 

11.1 As per the requirements of the Finance Act, 2013, Federal Excise Duty (FED) at the rate of 16 percent on the remuneration of the 

Management Company has been applied effective from June 13. 2013. The Management Company is of the view that since the 

remuneration is already subject to the provincial sales tax, further levy of FED may result in double taxation, which does not appear to 

be the spirit of the law, hence, a petition was collectively filed by the Mutual Fund Association of Pakistan with the Sindh High Court 

ISHCI on September 04, 2013. While disposing the above petition through order dated July 16, 2016, the SHC declared the said 

provisions to be ultra vires and as a result no FED is payable with effect from July 01, 2011. However, the tax authorities subsequently 

filed appeal against the decision of the SHC in the Supreme Court of Pakistan, which is pending for the decision. 

Furthermore, the Finance Act 2016 also introduced an amendment to the Federal Excise Act, 2005 whereby FED was withdrawn on 

services of different industries including Non-Banking Financial Institutions, which are already subject to provisional sales tax. This 

amount is payable to the Management Company for onward payment to the government. 

However, since the appeal is pending in the Supreme Court of Pakistan, the Management Company, as a matter of abundant caution, 

has retained provision for FED amounting to Rs. 20.813 million. Had the provision not been made, NAV per unit of the Fund as at June 

30, 2020 would have been higher by Re. 0.98 (30 June 2019: Rs. 2.251. 

9.2 Sales tax at the rate of 13% 130 June 2019: 13%l on the remuneration of the Trustee is applied under the provisions of Sindh Sales Tax on 

Services Act, 2011. 

10. ANNUAL FEE PAYABLE TO THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN 

SECP vide S.R.O. 685 (11/2019 dated June 28, 2019 has revised its annual fee from 0.075% to 0.02% per annum of average daily net 

11.  



11.2 Provision for Sindh Workers Welfare Fund is being made on a daily basis pursuant to MUFAPs recommendation to all 

its members on January 12, 2017 against the backdrop of the Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) letter to mutual funds in 

January 2016 whereby SRB directed the mutual funds to register and pay Sindh Workers Welfare Fund (SWWF) for the 

accounting year closing on or after December 31, 2013. This is on the premise that mutual funds are included in 

definition of financial institutions in the Financial Institutions (Recovery of Finance) Ordinance, 2001 hence WWF is 

payable by them. Though MUFAP has taken up the matter with the Sindh Finance Ministry to have CISs / mutual funds 

excluded from the applicability of SWWF, but as a matter of abundant caution management has recorded SWWF at 

2% of the net income earned by a Fund effective from April 12, 2016 (the date of the commencement of the Funds 

operation). 

Furthermore, on November 10, 2016, Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP) passed a judgment declaring the 

amendments made in the Finance Acts 2006 and 2008 pertaining to \NWF as illegal citing that WWF was not in the 

nature of tax and could, therefore, not have been introduced through money bills. Accordingly, the aforesaid 

amendments have been struck down by the SCP. The Federal Board of Revenue has filed a petition with the SCP 

against the said judgment, which is pending hearing. While the petition filed by the Collective Investment Schemes 

(CISs) on the matter are still pending before the Sindh High Court (SHC), the Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan 

(MUFAP) (collectively on behalf of the asset management companies and their CISs) have taken legal and tax 

opinions on the impact of the SCPs judgement on the CISs petition before the SHC. Both the legal and tax advisors 

consulted were of the view that the SCPs judgment has removed the very basis on which the demands were raised 

against the CISs. Therefore, there was no longer any liability against the CISs under the '.N\NF Ordinance and that all 

cases pending in the SHC or lower appellate forums will now be disposed of in light of the earlier judgement of the 

SCP. 

Pursuant to above MUFAP recommended that the entire provision of Rs. 13.862 million against WWF held by the CISs 

till June 30, 2015, to be reversed on January 12, 2017. 

The total provision for SWWF till June 30, 2020 is Rs. 19.31 million (30 June 2019: Rs. 13.21 million). Had the 

provision not been made, Net Assets Value per unit of the Fund as at June 30, 2020 would have been higher by Re. 

0.90 (30 June 2019: Rs. 1.42) per unit. 

12. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 

12.1 An order under section 161 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 has been issued by the Deputy Commissioner Inland 

Revenue (DCIR) alleging that the Fund did not / partially deducted withholding taxes from various payments made 

during the tax year 2016 and hence ordered to pay Rs. 22.14 million (including penalty & default surcharge). An 

appeal was filed before Commissioner Inland Revenue (CIRA) and thereafter in Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue 

(ATIR), which is yet to be heard. The management is confident that no unfavourable outcome is expected in relation 

to this case. 

12.2 A show cause notice (SCN) under section 161(1A) of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 has also been issued alleging 

that the Fund did not / partially deducted withholding taxes from various payments made during the tax year 2017. 

The Fund responded to the SCN by submitting the requisite information of withholding tax paid challans and 

expenses schedules upon which withholding taxes were applicable. Thereafter, no response has been received by 

the Fund. Management expects no unfavourable outcome on this matter. 

12.3 There are no other contigencies and commitments during the year other than those already disclosed. 

13. NUMBER OF UNITS IN ISSUE Note 2020 2019 

(Number)  

Total outstanding as of 1 July 9,255,140 12,606,780 

Issued during the year 13.1 34,020,071 9,453,056 

Redemptions during the year (22,175,985) (12,804,696) 

Total units in issue as of 30 June 21,099,226 9,255,140 

13.1 This includes 1,266,814 units issued at zero value as refund of capital. 

13.2 The Management Company on June 29, 2020 declared final distribution of Rs. 18 per unit for the year 

ended June 30, 2020. The aggregate cash distribution amounted to Rs. 194.976 million was in addition to refund of 

capital / element of income by issuing 1,266,814 additional units to eligible unitholders at zero price as per MUFAP 

guidelines (duly consented upon by SECP) included in units issued above. 



14.  AUDITORS REMUNERATION 2020 2019 

(Rupees in 000)  

Annual audit fee 184 161 

Half yearly review fee 69 69 

Out of pocket expenses 37 105 

290 335 

15.  TOTAL EXPENSE RATIO 

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide directive no. SCD/PRDD/Directionll8l20l6 dated 

July 20, 2016, requires that Collective Investment Scheme (CIS) shall disclose Total Expense Ratio (TER) in the financial 

statements of CIS /the Fund. As per S.R.O 639 (1)12019, the limit towards expense ratio has been revised from 2.00% 

to 2.50% for income, aggressive income, capital protected, index and commodity schemes (cash settled). The total 

expense ratio of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2020 is 1.89% (30 June 2019: 1.51 %) which excludes 0.16% 

(30 June 2019:0.4%) representing government levy, Sindh Workers Welfare Fund and SECP fee. 

16. TAXATION 

The Fund's income is exempt from Income Tax as per clause (99) of part I of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax 

Ordinance, 2001 subject to the condition that not less than 90% of the accounting income for the year as reduced by 

capital gains whether realised or unrealised is distributed amongst the unit holders. Provided that for the purpose of 

determining distribution of at least 90% of accounting income, the income distributed through bonus shares, units or 

certificates as the case may be, shall not be taken into account. Furthermore, as per regulation 63 of the Non-Banking 

Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008, the Fund is required to distribute 90% of the net 

accounting income other than capital gains to the unit holders. The Fund has distributed more than ninety percent of 

the Funds accounting income for the year as reduced by capital gains, whether realised or unrealised, to its unit 

holders during the year. Accordingly, no provision has been made in the financial statements for the year ended June 

30, 2020. 

17. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING OUT OF FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Receivable Payable Total 

against against 

issuance of redemption of 

units units 

(Rupees in 000')  

Opening balance as at 1 July 2019 

Receivable against issuance of units 3,733,136 3,733,136 

Payable against redemption of units 2,556,684 2,556,684 

3,733,136 2,556,684 6,289,820 

Amount received on issuance of units 3,733,136 3,733,136 

Amount paid on redemption of units 2,556,684 2,556,684 

3,733,136 2,556,684 6,289,820 

Closing balance as at 30 June 2020 

18. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES / CONNECTED PERSONS 

Connected persons / related parties include AWT Investments Limited being the Management Company, Central 

Depository Company of Pakistan Limited being the trustee, Army Welfare Trust which is the parent entity of the 

Management Company, other funds managed by the Management Company, associated companies of the 

management company! parent entity of the management company, entities in which the above parties or their 

connected persons have a material interest, Key Management Personnel and includes entities holding 10% or more 

units of the Fund as at June 30, 2020. It also includes the staff retirement benefit funds of the above related parties! 

connected persons. Details of the transactions and balances with the related parties / connected persons, other than 

those which has been disclosed elsewhere are as follows: 



18.1 Details of balances with related parties I connected persons Note 2020 2019 

as at year end (Rupees in '000)  

AW Investments Limited - Management Company 

Remuneration payable to the Management Company 8 4,608 3,259 

Selling and Marketing and Backoff ice Expense 7,338 

Army Welfare Trust - parent entity of the Management Company 

Units held -2,092,126 units (2019: 2,018,515 units) 18.5 223,062 213,235 

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee of the Fund 

Remuneration payable to the Trustee 9 172 142 

Security deposit 7 100 100 

Key Management Personnel of the Management Company 

Units held 17,830 units (2019: 6,109 units) 18.5 1,901 645 

18.2 Details of transactions with related parties I connected persons during the year 

AWT Investments Limited - Management Company 

Remuneration of Management Company 20,520 10,247 

Issuance of 9 units (2019: 4,377 units) 1 469 

Redemption of 9 units (2019: 4,377 units) 1 473 

Selling and Marketing and Backoffice Expense 7,338 

Army Welfare Trust - parent entity of the Management Company 

Issuance of 2.021,405 units (2019: 2,509,682 units) 221,986 276,706 

Refund of Capital 73,297 units (2019: Nil units) 7,816 

Redemption of 2,021,092 units (2019: 2,938,562 units) 222,098 314,328 

Cash Dividend 24,944 

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee of the Fund 

Remuneration of the Trustee 1,362 1,688 

Sindh sales tax on trustee remuneration 177 219 

CDC Settlement Charges 24 13 

Key Management Personnel of the Management Company 

Issuance of 24,010 units (2019: 4,151 units) 2,737 458 

Refund of Capital 1,596 units (2019: Nil units) 170 

Redemption of 20,747 units 12019: 955 units) 2,326 106 

Dividend paid during the period 64 

AWT Provident Fund 

Issuance of Nil units (2019: 21,118 units) 2,245 

Redemption of Nil units (2019: 28,345 units) 3,021 

18.3 Remuneration payable to the Management Company and the Trustees have been determined in accordance with the provisions 

of NBFC Regulations and the Trust Deed respectively. 

18.4 Purchase and redemption of units of the Fund by related parties / connected persons are recorded at the applicable net assets 

value per unit. Other transactions are at agreed rates. 

18.5 This reflects the position of related party / connected person status as of June 30, 2020. 

\JJV 



19. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 

Introduction and overview 

The Fund has exposure to following risks from financial instruments: 

- credit risk (refer note 19.1) 

- liquidity risk (refer note 19.2) 

- market risk (refer note 19.3) 

Risk management framework 

The Board of directors of the Management Company has the overall responsibility for the establishment 

and oversight of the Fund's risk management framework. 

Risk is inherent in the Fund's activities, but it is managed through monitoring and controlling activities which are primarily 

setup based on the limits established by the management company, Fund's constitutive documents and the regulations 

and directives of the SECP. The policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Fund, to set 

appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems 

are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Fund's activities. 

The audit committee oversees how the management monitors compliance with the Fund's risk management policies and 

procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Fund. The 

audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes regular reviews of risk 

management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee. 

Asset purchases and sales are determined by the Fund's Investment Manager, who has been authorised to manage the 

distribution of the assets to achieve the Fund's investment objectives. Compliance with the target asset allocations and 

the composition of the portfolio is monitored by the Investment Committee. In instances where the portfolio has diverged 

from target asset allocations, the Fund's Investment Manager is obliged to take actions to rebalance the portfolio in line 

with the established targets, within prescribed time limits. 

19.1 Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Fund if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its 

contractual obligations, and arises principally from bank balances, receivable against sale of securities and security 

deposits. 

Management of credit risk 

The Fund's policy is to enter into financial contracts in accordance with the investment guidelines approved by the 

Investment Committee, its Trust Deed and the requirements of NBFC rules and regulations. Before making investment 

decisions, the credit rating and credit worthiness of the issuer is taken into account along with the financial background 

so as to minimise the risk of default. 

Credit risk is managed and controlled by the Management Company of the Fund in the following manner: 

- Where the investment committee makes an investment decision, the credit rating and credit worthiness of the issuer 

is taken into account along with the financial background so as to minimise the risk of default. 

- Analysing of credit ratings and obtaining adequate collaterals wherever appropriate / relevant. 

- The risk of counterparty exposure due to failed trades causing a loss to the Fund is mitigated by a yearly review of 

the credit ratings and financial statements on a regular basis. 

- Cash is held only with reputable banks with high quality external credit enhancements. 

- Investment transactions are carried out with a large number of brokers, whose credit worthiness is taken into 

account so as to minimise the risk of default and transactions are settled or paid for only upon delivery. 

jr 



Exposure to credit risk 

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at June 30, 2020 was as follows: 

2020 2019 

Balance as per Maximum Balance as per Maximum 

the Statement Exposure the Statement Exposure 

of Asset and of Asset and 

Liabilities Liabilities 

(Rupees in '000)  

Bank balances (including profit due) 920,314 920,314 627,557 627,557 

Investments (including profit due) 1,411,994 359,089 384,848 292,609 

Security deposits and other receivables 151 2,751 2,600 

Cash margin with National Clearing Company of 

Pakistan Limited (NCCPL) 10,500 10,500 

2,332,459 1,279,403 1,025,656 933,266 

Difference in the balance as per the Statement of Assets and Liabilities and maximum exposure as at June 30, 2020 comprises of 

Government Securities of Rs. 1,a52.905 million (30 June 2019: Rs. 92.239 million) and income tax recoverable of Rs. 0.151 million (30 

June 2019: Rs. 0.151 million) are not exposed to credit risk. 

Credit ratings 

The Fund's balances with banks have the following credit ratings: 

2020 2019 

Rating (Rupees in 000) (%) (Rupees in 0001 1%) 

AAA 351,452 38.17% 

6,654 0.72% 

AA 869 0.09% - 

AA- 626 0.07% - 

A+ 869 0.09% 620,086 98.81% 

A- 8,221 0.89% 

A 546,888 59.96% 2,298 0.37% 

Suspended 7 0.00% 5,173 0.82% 

Total balance including profit due 915,586 100.00% 627,557 100.00% 

Above ratings are on the basis of available ratings assigned by PACRA and VIS. 

For credit ratings of investments, refer note 6. 

Concentration of credit risk 

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in economic or industry factors affects the group of counterparties whose aggregate credit 

exposure is significant in relation to the Fund's total credit exposure. The Funds portfolio exposed to credit risk primarily consists of bank 

deposits and debt securities. 

Details of Fund's concentration of credit risk of financial instruments by economic sectors are as follows: 

Commercial banks (including profit due and 

2020 2019 

(Rupees in '000) (%) (Rupees in 0001 (%( 

Term Finance Certificates( 362,489 37.37% 675,976 72.43% 

Micro Finance Bank (including profit due) 553,097 56.20% 83,167 8.91% 

Pharmaceutical 35,350 3.59% 45,565 4.88% 

Oil and Gas 6,568 0.67% 10,834 1.16% 

Insurance - 27,274 2.92% 

Leasing Modaraba - 77,350 8.29% 

Technology & Communication 18,750 1.91% - 

National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited - 

security deposit and cash margin 2,500 0.25% 13,000 1.39% 

Central Depository Company of Pakistan 

Limited - security deposit 100 0.01% 100 0.01% 

978,854 100.00% 933,266 100.00% 

Past due and impaired assets and collaterals held 

None of the financial assets of the Fund are past due or impaired as at June 30, 2020. 



Settlement risk 

The Fund's activities may give rise to risk at the time of settlement of transactions. Settlement risk is the risk of loss due to the failure 

of an entity to honour its obligations to deliver cash, securities or other assets as contractually agreed on sale. 

For the vast majority of transactions the Fund mitigates this risk by conducting settlements through a broker to ensure that a trade is 

settled only when both parties have fulfilled their contractual settlement obligations. 

19.2 Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are 

settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Funds approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will 

have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring 

unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Funds reputation. 

The Fund aims to maintain the level of cash and cash equivalents and other highly marketable securities at an amount in excess of 

expected cash outflows on financial liabilities. The Fund is exposed to cash redemptions of its units on a regular basis. Units are 

redeemable at the holder's option based on the Fund's net assets value per unit at the time of redemption calculated in accordance with the 

Fund's constitutive document and guidelines laid down by Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECPI. 

Management of liquidity risk 

The Fund's policy is to manage this risk by investing majority of its assets in investments and other financial instruments that are traded 

in an active market and can be readily disposed. As a result, the Fund may by able to liquidate quickly its investment in these instruments 

at an amount close to their fair value to meet its liquidity requirement. 

In addition, the Fund has the ability to borrow, with prior approval of trustee, for meeting redemption. No such borrowings were made 

during the year. The maximum amount available to the Fund from borrowings is limited to the extent of 15% of net assets at the time of 

borrowing with repayment with in 90 days of such borrowings. 

In order to manage the Fund's overall liquidity, the Fund can also withhold daily redemption request in excess of ten percent of the units in 

issue and such requests would be treated as redemption request qualifying for being processed on the next business day. Such procedure 

would continue until the outstanding redemption requests come down to a level below ten percent of the units then in issue. 

Maturity analysis for financial liabilities 

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted. 

Contractual cash flows 

30 June 2020 Carrying Less than 

amount I month 

Financial liabilities (Rupees in '000)  

Payable to the Management Company (excluding Sindh sales tax and federal excise dutyl 2,024 2,024 

Remuneration payable to the Trustee 152 152 

Accrued expenses and other liabilities* 11,436 11,436 

13,612 13,612 

Unit holders fund 2,249,599 2,249,599 

  

Contractual cash flows 

30 June 2019 Carrying Less than 

amount 1 month 

Financial liabilities lRupees in 000)  

Payable to the Management Company (excluding Sindh sales tax and federal excise dutyl 830 830 

Remuneration payable to the Trustee 142 142 

Accrued expenses and other liabilities* 5,597 5,597 

6,569 6,569 

Unit holders' fund 977,735 977.735 

Above financial liabilities do not carry any mark-up. 

 

* excluding provision for sindh workers' welfare fund, federal excise duty on Management Company's remuneration, Sindh sales tax 

payable on Management Company's remuneration, Sindh sales tax payable on Trustees remuneration, annual fee payable to SECP and 

withholding income tax payable. 

19.3 Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices - will affect the 

Fund's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control 

market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. 



Management of market risks 

The Fund manages market risk by monitoring exposure on marketable securities by following the internal risk management policies and 

investment guidelines approved by the Investment Committee and regulations laid down by the Securities and Exchange Commission of 

Pakistan. The maximum risk resulting from financial instruments equals their fair values. 

The Fund is exposed to interest rate and price risks. 

19.3.1 Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in interest 

rates. Risk management procedures are the same as those mentioned in the credit risk management. 

Exposure to interest rate risk 

Interest rate profile of the Funds interest-bearing financial instruments as reported to the management of the Fund is as follows: 

Variable rate instruments 

2020 2019 

(Rupees in '000)  

Financial assets (bank balances) 915,586 624,995 

Financial assets (Sukuks and term finance certificates) 110,668 132,008 

1,026,254 757,003 

Fixed rate Instrument 

Financial assets (Term deposit receipts, Pakistan Investment Bonds and Market 

Treasury Bills) 1,219,783 168,834 

1,219,783 168,834 

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments 

A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased / decreased unit holder fund 

and income statement by Rs. 0.814 million (30 June 2019: Rs. 7.57 millionl. The analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular 

foreign currency exchange rates, remain constant. 

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments 

The Company does not account for term deposit receipt (fixed rate financial asset) at fair value through profit and loss. Therefore, a 

change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect income statement of the fund. 

Pakistan Investment Bonds which are classified as fair value through profit or loss, exposing the Fund to fair value interest rate risk. In 

case of 100 basis points increase / decrease in mark-up rates on June 30, 2019. would decrease unit holders' fund and income statement 

by Rs.10.14 million (30 June 2019: Rs. 8.83 million) 

Bank balances are repriced by the bank after changes in the State Bank of Pakistan's policy rate and do not have any contractual 

maturity. 

None of the Funds liabilities are subject to interest rate risk. 

19.3.2 Price Risk 

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices 

(other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk) whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual 

financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market. A 5% increase or decrease in 

the sukuk certificates and term finance certificates of Its. 110.668 million at the year end would have increased or decreased the Income 

statement by Rs. 0.826 million. 

19.4 Unit holder's fund risk management (Capital risk management) 

Management's objective when managing unit holders' funds is to safeguard the Fund's ability to continue as a going concern so that it 

can continue to provide optimum returns to its unit holders' and to ensure reasonable safety of unit holders' funds. 

The Fund manages its portfolio and other assets by monitoring return on net assets and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in 

markets' conditions. Under the NBFC regulations 2008, the minimum size of an open end scheme shall be one hundred million rupees at 

all the times during the life of the scheme. The Fund size depends on the issuance and redemption of units. 

In order to maintain or adjust the unit holders' fund structure, the Fund's policy is to perform the following: 

- Monitors the level of daily issuance and redemptions relative to the liquid assets and adjusts the amount of distributions the Fund pays 

to unit holders; 

Redeem and issue units in accordance with the constitutive documents of the Fund, which include the ability to restrict redemptions 

and require certain minimum holdings and issuance; and 

The Fund Manager / Investment Committee members and Chief Executive of the Management Company critically track the movement 

of 'Assets under Management'. The Board of Directors is updated about the Fund yield and movement of NAV and total fund size at the 

end of each quarter. 



19.5 Fair value of financial Instruments 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the 

measurement date. 

Underlying the defirition of fair value is the presumption that the Fund is a going concern without any intention or requirement to curtail materially the 

scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction on adverse terms. 

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded in active markets i.e. listed equity shares are based on the quoted market prices at the close of 

trading on the year end date. The quoted market prices used for financial assets held by the Fund is current bid price. 

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer. 

broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an 

arm's length basis. 

IFRS 13, Fair Value Measurements' requires the Fund to classify fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of 

the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels: 

- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date (level 1). 

- Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly (level 21. 

- Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability (level 31. 

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value 

hierarchy. 

On-balance sheet financial instruments 

30 June 2020 

Carrying amount Fair value 

Note Mandatoriiy 

at fair value 

through 

profit or 

loss 

6 1,155,451 

At fair value At Total Level 1 Level 2 Total 

through other amortised 

comprehensive cost 

income 

(Rupees in 000) —  

1,155,451 1,155,451 1,155,451 

Financial assets measured at fair value 

Investments 

Financial assets not measured at fair value 19.5.1 

Bank balances 5 915,586 915,586 

Investments 6 - - 238,386 238.386 

Other receivables 7 25,485 25,485 

1.179.457 1,179,457 

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value 19.5.1 

Remuneration payable to the Management 

Company 8 2,024 2,024 

Remuneration payable to the Trustee 9 152 152 

Accrued expenses and other liabilities 11 11,436 11,436 

13,612 13.612 

Carrying amount Fair value 

On-balance sheet financial instruments Mandatorily At fair value At Total Level 1 Level 2 Total 

at fair value through other amortised 

through comprehensive cost 

profit or loss income 

30 June 2019  

Note 

IRupees in '000) 

Financial assets measured at fair value 

Investments 6 220,842 - 220 842 220,842 220,842 

Financial assets not measured at fair value 19.5. 1 

Bank balances 5 - - 624,995 624,995 

Investments 6 155,000 155,000 

Other receivables 7 24,668 24,668 

807 263 807,263 

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value 19.5. 1 

Remuneration payable to the Management 

Company 8 - - 830 830 

Remuneration payable to the Trustee 9 - 142 142 

Accrued expenses and other liabilities 11 - 823 823 

- - 1795 1795 

19.5.1 The Fund has not disclosed the fair values for the above financial assets (other than for investmentsl and financial liabilities, as these are either short 

term in nature or repriced periodically. Therefore, their carrying amounts are reasonable approximation of fair values. 

19.5.2 Net assets attributable to unitholders. The Fund routinely redeems and issues the units at the amount equal to the proportionate share of net assets of 

the Fund at the time of redemption, calculated on a basis consistent with that used in these financial statements. Accordingly, the carrying amount of net 

assets attributable to unitholders approximates their fair value. The units are categorized into Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. 



20. SUPPLEMENTARY NON FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

The information regarding unit holding pattern of the Fund, list of top brokers by percentage of commission the paid, 

members of the Investment Committee, fund manager, meetings of the Board of Directors, credit rating of the Fund and the 

Management Company of the Fund as required under Schedule V of Non Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities 

Regulations, 2008 are as follows: 

20.1 Unit holding pattern of Fund 

2020 

Category Number of Investment Percentage of 

unit holders amount investment 

(Rupees in 000) ---- (%) 

Individuals 938 1,069,000 47.51 

Bank / DFls 

Associates 1 223,000 9.91 

Other Corporates 306 958,245 42.58 

1,245 2,250,245 100.00 

2019 

Category Number of Investment Percentage of 

unit holders amount investment 

(Rupees in '000) — (%) — 

Individuals 

Bark/DFIs 

Associates 

Other Corporates 

20.2 List of top brokers by percent of the commission paid 

The list of brokers by percentage of the commission paid during the year ended June 30, 2020 are as follows: 

Name of broker Percentage of 

commission I 

brokerage 

- Invest One Markets Limited 55.58 

- C&M Management Private Limited 35.01 

- Adam Securities Limited 8.60 

- JS Global Limited 0.76 

- BIPL Securities Limited 0.05 

The list of brokers by percentage of the commission paid during the year ended June 30, 2019 were as follows: 

Name of broker Percentage of 

commission / 

brokerage 

Adam Securities Limited 62.67 

C&M Management Private Limited 16.78 

Invest One Markets Limited 16.47 

Vector Securities Limited 4.08 

20.3 Members of the investment committee 

Following are the members of investment committee: 

Mr. Salman Haider - Chief Executive Officer 

Mr. Basharat Ullah - Chief Investment Officer and Fund manager 

Mr. Shehzad Dhedhi - Chief Financial Officer & Company Secretary 

Mr. Makdhoom Kamran Ahmed - head of Risk and Compliance 

Mr. lmran Rahim Khan - Fund Manager 

617 892,400 91.27 

- 

- 

59 85,335 8.73 

676 977,735 100.00 



Mr. Salman Haider - Chief Executive Officer 

Mr. Salman Haider has over 21 years of Investment Management experience including almost 10 years on Wall Street starting with Merrill Lynch in 1996 

along with Janney and Wachovia-Wells Fargo. He has held series 7 and series 63 licenses with life and health insurance licenses of NASD in New York to 

develop and invest in diverse investment products including securities, debentures, futures and options, commodities and annuitized insurance investment 

plans. Mr. Salman Haider has vast experience in Investment Banking and Asset Management arenas and has headed Faysal Atset Management Ltd in 

Pakistan from 2005 till 2012 growing profits of the company by over 600% and asset base from PKR 1 Billion to PKR 13 Billion. Mr. Haider holds a 

bachelors in Finance from Rutgers University USA. an  MBA from University of London UK and an executive leadership graduate certification from Cornell 

University, USA. 

Mr. Basharat Ullah . Chief Investment Officer 

Mr. Basharat Ullah is heading the fund management division of AWl Investments. He has extensive experience of 26 years in Pakistan capital markets 

primarily in the field of investment management and buy/sell side research. He has worked in both asset management and brokerage industry, with 11 

years in the mutual fund sector where he headed fund management divisions in two asset management companies- Arif Habib Investments and Askari 

Investments. In brokerage, he served as head of research, heading the equity desk and also as a Chief Executive of a company. He has a MSc in 

Economics. 

Mr. Shehzad Dhedhi - Chief Financial Officer 

Mr. Shehzad Dhedhi is a Fellow Chartered Accountant from the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) with over nineteen years of 

experience in financial sector. Mr. Dhedhi had been a successful CFO in spearheading the finance departments and management committees of large 

financial institutions since 2012 in both Singapore and Pakistan. His expertise include International Financial Reporting Standards, strategic planning and 

budgeting, project management, regulatory reporting and business transformation. He is a member of various committees of ICAP and one of the 

cofounders of CFO Club in Pakistan. Mr. Dhedhi completed his post-graduation from the Institute of Business Administration (IBAI, Karachi in 2004. He also 

earned 2 gold medals in his academic studies. 

Mr. Shehzad Dhedhi joined as a CFO after June 30. 2019. 

Mr. Makdhoom Kamran Ahmed - Head of Risk and Compliance 

Mr. Makhdoom is currently serving as a Head of Risk & Compliance Department. His diverse experience of has been mainly as a risk professional in the 

banking industry. His pragmatic experience of managing various types of risks within the Banking industry in Pakistan is yielding dividends now in the asset 

management industry. He holds a degree in Actuarial Sciences & Risk Management from the University of Karachi and MBA degree from Karachi University 

Business School (KUBS). 

Mr. lmran Rahim Khan - Fund Manager 

Mr. Imran Rahirn Khan isa seasoned professional with over 21-years of experience, which were spent in the field of Treasury and Funds Management. 

During his experience, he had the privilege of working for Prime Commercial Bank Ltd. ABN-AMRO Bank Pakistan, Noman Abid Investment Management 

Ltd. Pearl Securities Ltd and Pak-Oman Asset Management Company (a joint venture between Pak Oman Investment Company Limited, Oman National 

Investment Corporation, Bank Muscat and NLC (SRBF), Vector Capital Ltd and now AWl Investment Management Ltd (a joint venture of AWT investments 

and Pak Brunei Investment Company Ltdl. He has a solid working experience in managing both conventional and Islamic Fixed Income/Equity funds. 

During his professional life and career he had an exposure of Forex market when in Commercial Banks and of equity market when he was Chief 

Investment Officer in Noman Abid Investments Ltd. Besides he is an MBA in Banking & Finance as well as MA in (Economics) from Karachi University. He 

has also completed PGD in Islamic Banking & Finance from Shaikh Zayed Islamic Centre University of Karachi and stage III candidate of JAIBP. 

20.4 Manager of the Fund 

Mr. lmren Rahim Khan - Fund Manager I Also Fund Manager of A.NT Islamic Income fundl. 

For details, refer note 20.3 above. 

20.5 Directors meeting attendances 

Following are the dates and name of persons who attended the meeting of the Board of Directors during the year: 

For the year ended 30 June 2020 

Dates 

meeting 

Name of directors attended 

Mr. Salman Haider 4 

Mr. Tariq Iqbal Khan 4 

Lt. General Najib UIlah Khan (Retd.) 4 

Major General Akhtar Iqbal (Retd.) 4 

Mr. Malik Riffat Mehmood 3 

Mr. Raheel Qamer Ahmed* 1 

Members attended 

* Mr. Raheel Oamer Ahmed has been appointed on February 20, 2020. 

For the year ended 30 June 2019 

Dates 2-Jul-18 

meeting 

attended 

5 1 1 1 1 1 

5 1 1 1 1 1 

4 1 1 1 - 1 

5 1 1 1 1 1 

5 1 1 1 1 1 

0 N/A 

19-Sep-19 29-Oct-19 20.Feb-20 29-Apr-20 

1 1 1 1 

1 1 1 1 

1 1 1 1 

1 1 1 1 

1 1 1 

N/A N/A N/A 1 

5 5 4 6 

24-Sep-lB 26-Oct-18 15-Feb-19 18-Apr-19 

Name of directors 

Mr. Salman Hajder 

I1r. Tariq Iqbal Khan 

Lt. General Najib UlIah Khan lRetd.) 

Major General Akhtar lqbal (Retd.I 

Mr. Malik Riffat Mehmood 

Ms. Maleeha Humayun Bangash 

Members attended 

Ms. Maleeha Humayun Bangash resigned on February 15, 2019. 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 
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n 

1 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 



20.6 Audit Committee meeting attendances 

Following are the dates and name of persons who attended the meeting of the Audit Committee during 

the year: 

For the year ended 30 June 2020 

Name of directors 

Dates 

meeting 

attended 

19-Sep-19 29-Oct-19 20-Feb-20 29-Apr-20 

Mr. Tariq lqbal Khan 4 1 1 1 1 

Major General Akhtar lqbal (Retd.) 4 1 1 1 1 

Mr. Malik Riffat Mehmood 4 1 1 1 1 

Members attended 3 3 3 

For the year ended 30 June 2019 

Name of directors 

Dates 

meeting 

attended 

24-Sep-18 26-Oct-18 15-Feb-19 18-Apr-19 

Mr. Tariq lqbal Khan 4 1 1 1 1 

Major General Akhtar lqbal (Retd.) 4 1 1 1 1 

Mr. Malik Riffat Mehmood 3 1 1 1 

Ms. Maleeha Humayun Bangash* 0 - N/A 

Members attended 3 3 3 2 

* Ms. Maleeha Humayun Bangash resigned on February 15, 2019. 

20.7 Human Resource and Remuneration meeting attendances 

Following are the date and name of persons who attended the meeting of Human Resource and 

Remuneration during the year: 

For the year ended 30 June 2020 

Dates 3-Feb-20 

Meeting 

Name of Directors attended 

Major General Akhtar lqbal (Retd.) 1 1 

Mr. Tariq lqbal Khan 1 1 

Mr. Salman Haider 1 1 

Members attended 3 

For the year ended 30 June 2019 

Dates 12-Apr-i 9 

Meeting 

Name of Directors attended 

Major General Akhtar lqbal (Retd.) 1 1 

Mr. Tariq lqbal Khan 1 1 

Mr. Salman Haider 1 1 

Members attended 3 



20.8 Fund and Asset Manager Rating 

The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency (PACRA) vide its report dated April 16, 2020, has assigned stability 

rating of 'A+(f)° to the fund. 

The VIS Credit Rating Company Limited (VIS) vide its press release dated April 24, 2020 has assigned & 

reaffirmed rating of AM3+ to the Management Company with stable outlook. 

21. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE 

These financial statements were authorized for issue by Board of Directors of the Management Company on 

22. CORRESPONDING FIGURES 

Corresponding figures have been rearranged or reclassified, where necessary, for the purpose of better 

presentation the effect of which is not material. 

23. GENERAL 

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand Rupees. 

For AWT Investments Limited 

(Management Company) 

 

 

Chief Financial Officer Director 
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FUND MANAGER’S REPORT 

 

 

Category and type of Collective Investment Scheme 

Islamic Income Scheme/ Open end 

Objective of Collective Investment Scheme 

The objective of AWT - IIF is to generate, competitive risk adjusted returns by investing in short, medium and 
long-term Shariah Compliant Fixed Income Instruments. 

Explanation as to whether the Collective Investment Scheme has achieved its stated objectives 

The collective investment scheme achieved its stated objectives. 

Benchmark(s) relevant to the Collective Investment Scheme 

6 month average deposit rates of three (3) A rated scheduled Islamic Banks or Islamic windows of conventional 
Banks as selected by MUFAP. 

 
Comparison of the Collective Investment Scheme's performance during the period compared with 
the said benchmarks 
 

Months Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19 Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19 Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 

Performance 10.57% 10.93% 10.50% 10.97% 10.20% 10.11% 10.57% 9.93% 10.08% 6.26% -24.04% 12.09% 

Benchmark 5.42% 5.71% 6.09% 6.31% 6.50% 6.71% 6.79% 6.81% 6.58% 6.57% 6.59% 5.89% 

Diff 5.15% 5.22% 4.41% 4.66% 3.70% 3.40% 3.78% 3.12% 3.50% -0.31% -30.63% 6.20% 

 

Strategies and policies employed during the period under review in relation to the Collective 

Investment Scheme's performance 

During FY’2020 AWT-IIF return was registered at 7.74%, while the benchmark return was 6.39% denoting an 
outperformance by 135bps.  

On June 30, 2020, Net Assets of the fund stood at PKR 274.92 million, whereas the Net Assets of the fund on 

June 30, 2019 were PKR 218.06 million showing a YoY increase of 26.11%. During 4Q, the fund has attracted 

new inflows and as a result, the Net Assets of the Fund increased by 3.27% from March 31, 2020 level of PKR 

266.20 million. The weighted average time to maturity of the portfolio stood at 257days. The fund’s Net Asset 
value (NAV per unit) on June 30, 2020 was PKR 103.38 as the fund distributed interim dividend of PKR 7 per 

unit on June 28, 2020 which was one of the highest dividend paid to its unit holders in the Shariah Compliant 
Income Category. 

Collective Investment Scheme's asset allocation as at the date of the report and particulars of 
significant changes in asset allocation since the last report (if applicable) 
 

Portfolio Allocation Jun-19 Jun-20 

Cash at Bank 66.69% 31.85% 

Sukuk 4.08% 44.17% 

Others including receivables 2.04% 13.61% 

Placement with Banks 13.59% 0.00% 

Certificate of Musharaka 13.59% 10.37% 
 

· 
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Collective Investment Scheme's performance 
 

 Fund 

Sharpe Ratio* 0.12 

Information Ratio -0.05 

Standard Deviation* 5.37% 

Weighted Avg Maturity (Days) 798 
 

*Annualized 

·  
Total NAV and NAV per unit since the last review period 
 

 FY19  FY20 

Net Assets PKR Mn  218.06 274.92 

NAV/unit (PKR)  102.45 103.38 
 

Economic Review 

Contraction in GDP in 4Q20- growth to rebound in FY21  

Economy suffered one of its major shocks from covid19 as lockdown situation from March-June led to contraction in 
GDP by 0.4% (provisional) during FY20. Agriculture sector recorded growth of 2.67%, while manufacturing and services 
declined by 2.64% and 0.59% respectively in FY20. Large scale manufacturing (LSM) declined by 10.17% in the year, 
while it began to improve on MoM basis in June showing an increase of 16.8% compared to May 2020. 

For next year, government is targeting GDP growth of 2.1% while IMF/World Bank growth forecast is 1%. We believe 
GDP growth now appears to be higher than what was initially estimated. In our view, GDP growth will surge to 3-4% 
level in FY21 as covid situation has largely been brought under control in the country as of late and we have seen 
pickup in economic activities with strong jump in industrial growth in July as evident from cement, steel, automobile, 
petroleum products sales numbers. As covid situation improves further, we are likely to see services sectors growth 
also picking up such as transportation, traveling, tourism, hotels, and restaurants. Agriculture sector was impacted by 
locust attack on crops on wider scale during past four months, however, if timely measures are taken growth could be 
revived in the current year.    

Decline in FBR taxes were cushioned by very higher surplus profits of SBP in FY20 

Tax collections during last four months fell sharply lower due to covid lockdown in the country. Total collections for the 
year were Rs 3.998 trillion as against the revised target of Rs 4.8 trillion (and start of the year target of Rs 5.5 trillion). 
June saw improved performance in tax collections as initially the target was set around 3.9trillion before the budget 
announcement. Non-tax revenues recorded major increase to Rs 1.448trillion (62% higher than the budget) mainly due 
to significant jump in surplus profit of SBP which was recorded at Rs 935bn. Other taxes were recorded at Rs 336bn. 
Thus total revenues collected during the year were Rs 5.782 trillion.  

Tax collection target for FBR at Rs 4.96trillion in FY21 from around 4trillion in the previous year is 23% higher. Most 
likely growth in these taxes could safely be assumed to grow at 15% (to Rs 4.6trillion) given the rebound in economic 
activities, however, 23% increase may be difficult to achieve. Many businesses and services sectors are operating at 
lower levels or partially operative, it seems quite unlikely that tax collections will show improvement in 1Q and most 
likely to remain at low level. Provided Covid situation comes under control by the end of 1Q, we can expect significant 
pickup in economic activities in subsequent quarters thus enabling FBR to see growth in tax collections. Non-tax 
revenues (under the lead of SBP profits) and other taxes have been projected to be around Rs 1.6 trillion in FY21 
compared to Rs 1.8 trillion in FY20,thus total revenues for FY21 are projected to increase to Rs 6.2 trillion compared 
to government own estimate of Rs 6.5tr.   

Debt burden will remain high in FY21 

Final numbers of year end June Pakistan debt position is not yet published. Till May 2020, central government has 
accumulated Rs 35 trillion in total debt. Domestic debt (excluding liabilities and private sector debt) is around Rs 24 
trillion and foreign debt is Rs 11 trillion. Total increase is around Rs3.3 trillion during the year, mostly reflecting the fiscal 
deficit of the year which forces the government to borrow more. In FY21, government has budgeted to raise external 
receipts of $14bn (Rs 2.2 trillion) during 2021, almost same amount as of last year. Out of this $8bn will be used for 
repayment of old loans. At the same time, capital receipts are budgeted to increase by almost 51% to Rs 1.5 trillion. 
This includes borrowings through the issue of T-Bills, PIBs, Sukuks and NSS.  
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Fiscal deficit will remain elevated  

Final figure of fiscal deficit for FY20 has come at 8.1% compared to earlier estimates of 9.1%. During the year, fiscal 
deficit has improved to 8.1% of GDP from 8.9% in the preceding year FY19. Fiscal deficit of Rs 3,376bn was plugged 
through domestic borrowing of Rs 2,480bn and external borrowings of Rs 896bn. The government has estimated to 
bring the deficit to 7.1% in FY21. However, there are less prospects of improvement in fiscal deficit in current year as 
we believe government has made its intentions very clear as it has begun to make allocations on development 
expenditures on priority base to help stimulate economic growth. With no room to cut current expenditures which will 
grow by around 10% along with extra spending on covid related expenditures and government is going ahead with 
spending on its planned development expenditures on dams and CPEC projects, therefore, we are not seeing any 
possibility of reduction in fiscal deficit and it is likely to stay around 8% of GDP. 

Significant improvement in current account deficit in FY20 

Current account deficit for the year ended June 2020 fell sharply lower by 78% to $2.96bn from $13.43 in the previous 
year. Major contributing factor in drastic reduction of C/A deficit was 18% decline in imports ($9.5bn) during the year to 
$42.4bn from $51.9bn. Exports also fell (7% decline to $22.5bn compared to $24.2 in FY19) during the year mostly 
impacted by covid lockdown period during March-June 2020.  Workers remittances during the year increased by 6.3% 
to $23.12 from $21.74 in the previous year. This is the first time in Pakistan history that the country earned more in 
remittances than its exports.  

In July exports have started to increase showing growth of 5.8% to $1.998bn from $1.889 in the preceding year while 
imports declined by 4.2% to $3.54bn from $3.696bn thus trade deficit reduced by 14.7% to $1.54bn in the first month 
of the new fiscal year. Going forward into FY21, while there seems to be less fear of increase in current account deficit 
at the moment given the relatively lower international oil prices, however, every economic recovery in the past has not 
been without significant jump in imports and we don’t see any reason why imports will not increase when there is pickup 
in domestic economic activities. If exports start to recover its lost ground and grow by around 7% along with stable 
remittances while growth in imports don’t overshoot say above10%, Pakistan will be able to keep a check on its current 
account deficit. Any decline in CA deficit which is mainly the result of contraction in imports is the sign of slow economic 
activity, and given the government emphasize on reviving economic growth we should see growth in imports will start 
appearing in coming months.  

SBP aggressive cuts in policy rate to 7%  

SBP kept the policy at higher level of 13.25% till March and only responded to decrease it after the covid hit the economy 
badly. During these four months the rate was brought down to 7%, one of the steepest rate cuts in the country’s history 
and compared to the rest of the world. Monthly CPI showed rising trend till January 2020 when it hit the highest level 
of 14.6% and then began its decline to 8.6% by June 2020. Average CPI for the year came at 10.74%.  

For next year, government and SBP own estimates indicate CPI to average between 7-8%. In the first month of July, 
CPI was recorded at 9.3%. Keeping in view, inflation expectations in the country there is no possibility for further cut in 
the policy rate during the remaining months of this fiscal year. At the same time, we don’t expect SBP will resort to 
tightening so soon during the year even if the rate of inflation is slightly above the target level. We expect SBP will keep 
the policy rate unchanged at 7% in the foreseeable future, perhaps during the whole of this fiscal year. Primary 
consideration for Pakistani central bank, like most of other central banks world over, is revival of economic growth after 
the havoc done by coronavirus which has pushed economic growth in negative in recent months due to lockdowns. 
Increasing the policy rate too soon in response to uptick in monthly CPI numbers will prove counterproductive to revive 
economic growth. Most importantly, if the balance of payment situation remains in control and current account deficit 
stays lower, SBP will have less worries over Rupee depreciation and will not be forced to push interest rates higher to 
maintain currency stability.   

Money Market & Fixed Income Review 

Since March 2020, SBP has reduced the policy rate from 13.25% to 7% in June as it moved aggressively to counter 
the negative impact of covid on the slowing economy. During FY’ 2020, the yield curve in the secondary market closed 
down in shorter tenor government securities TBILLS at 7.09%(-566 bps), 7.05%(-580 bps) and 7.05%(-608 bps) in 3m, 
6m and 12m tenors respectively. Similarly the longer tenor PIBs yields 3 year (-632 bps), 5 year (-577 bps) and 10 year 
(-503 bps) closed at 7.53%, 8.11% and 8.69% respectively.  
Longer term yields have started to move down much earlier than the central bank cuts from March 2020. Policy rate 
was increased once in July 2019 when it was revised upward by 100bps to 13.25%. After that increase earlier in the 
year, yield curve had moved inverted with long term yields falling lower than short term rates as market started to expect 
no further increase in the policy rate. It took 9 months and the covid to hit us before SBP could move to bring the interest 
rates down. With bond prices gaining strongly during the course of the year, mutual funds having larger allocation to 
PIBs (such as our AWT Income Fund-with return of 18%) were the winners giving above average returns during the 
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year. Moving forward into FY2021, we do not expect further cut in the policy rate from existing 7% in coming few 
months. The rate of inflation which is expected to stay in higher single digit (7-8%) doesn’t support further easing. Given 
this scenario of no change in the policy rate in the near term and yield curve expected range of 7-10% returns, the rate 
of returns on money market and income funds will fall in this broader range also. This is the new reality which investors 
in fixed income funds will have to adjust with in coming days. 

 
 

Distribution made out of Collective Investment Scheme 
 
 

Distribution 
 

Income distribution made by the Fund was Rs. 7.00 per unit on June 26, 2020 for FY20  

 NAV per unit as on  

 Cum - NAV (PKR) 109.93 

 Ex - NAV (PKR) 102.93 
 
Description and explanation of any significant changes in the state of affairs of the Collective Investment 
Scheme during the period and up till the date of the manager's report, not otherwise disclosed in the 
financial statements 
There were no significant changes in the state of affairs during the year under review. 

Unit Holding Pattern 
 

Category 
Number of Unit 
Holders 

Individuals 54.01% 

Bank / DFIs 0.00% 

Associates 36.09% 

Others 9.90% 

Total 100% 

 

Circumstances that materially affect any interest of the unit holders  

Investment is subject to market risk 

Disclosure if the Asset Management Company or its delegate, if any, receives any soft commission (i.e. 
goods and services) from its broker(s) or dealer(s) by virtue of transactions conducted by the Collective 
Investment Scheme, disclosure of the following:- 
The Management Company and / or any of its delegates have not received any soft commission from its brokers / 
dealers by virtue of transactions conducted by the Fund. 
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PERFORMANCE TABLE / KEY FINANCIAL DATA

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

000's 000's 000's 000's 000's

Description

Net Assets 274915 218,057 99,072 36,410 276,402

Net Income 18792 9,522 4,269 1,343 11,416

Total return of the Fund 7.66 7.22 4.14 4.37 6.26

Total dividend distribution 7 6.64 3.71 3.16 6.68

Capital Growth 0.58 0.43 1.21 -0.42

Average Annual Return

One Year - in percentage 7.66% 7.22% 4.14% 4.37% 6.26%

Two Year - in percentage 7.44% 5.68% 4.26% 5.32% 5.67%

Three Year- in percentage 6.34% 5.24% 4.92% 5.24% 5.60%

Net assets value per unit - Rupees 103.38 102.45 105.44 101.25 100.04

Highest offer price per unit * 113.77 111.48 107.83 106.55 108.75

Lowest offer price per unit * 104.45 104.16 103.52 102.06 102.02

Year-end offer price per unit * 105.44 104.77 107.83 103.28 102.05

Highest repurchase price per unit * 111.54 109.01 105.44 104.45 106.61

Lowest repurchase price per unit * 102.4 101.85 101.23 100.06 100.01

Year-end repurchase price per unit * 103.37 102.45 105.44 101.25 100.03

Final Interim distribution per unit - 3.71 3.16 -

Announcement date 6-Jul-18 - -

First Interim distribution per unit 7 6.64 - - 1.37

Announcement date 26-Jun-20 28-Jun-19 - - 24-Jun-16

Second Interim distribution per unit - - - 5.31

Announcement date - - - 29-Jun-16

Total Distribution as % of par value 7 6.64 3.71 3.16 6.68

Number of units in issue - Number 2,659,389 2,128,413 939,568 359,591 2,762,856

Notes:

* AWT Islamic Income Fund was launched on 04 March 2014.

* Past performance is not necessarily indicative of future performance and 

that certificate prices and investment returns may go down, as well as up.
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FUND MANAGER’S REPORT 

 

 

 Category and type of Collective Investment Scheme 

Islamic Equities Scheme/ Open end 

 Objective of Collective Investment Scheme 
The objective of AWT-ISF is to achieve long term capital growth by investing mainly in Shariah Compliant 
listed equity securities 

 Explanation as to whether the Collective Investment Scheme has achieved its stated objectives 

The collective investment scheme achieved its stated objectives. 
 Benchmark(s) relevant to the Collective Investment Scheme 

KMI - 30 Index 
 

 Comparison of the Collective Investment Scheme's performance during the period compared 
with the said benchmarks 
 

 
 

 Strategies and policies employed during the period under review in relation to the Collective 

Investment Scheme's performance 

During FY20, Islamic Stock Fund has generated a return of 0.62% compared to KMI-30 benchmark return 

of 1.62%. Top out performing stocks in 4Q FY20 in the portfolio were NML, PKGS, FCEPL, FFC, ENGRO 

and INIL. Major holding which were offloaded during the year were OGDC, PSO, PPL, MFL, MUGHAL and 

EFERT. Stocks which were added/increased during the year were FCEP, Searl, Glaxo, NML, MEBL and 

FFC. Net asset of the fund decline to PKR 80.71mn in the year compared to PKR 86.88mn in the previous 

year. As on June30, 2020, exposure in equities was 76.63% and bank placement at 22%. The fund’s Net 
Asset Value (NAV per unit) on June 30, 2020 was PKR 80.67. 

 

Collective Investment Scheme's asset allocation as at the date of the report and particulars of 
significant changes in asset allocation since the last report (if applicable) 
 

Portfolio Allocation Jun-19 Jun-20 

Equity Securities 66.07% 72.88% 

Cash at Bank 28.99% 22.43% 

Others including receivables 4.94% 4.87% 

Total 100.00% 100.00% 

 
 

 Collective Investment Scheme's performance 

 Fund 

Sharpe Ratio* -0.37 

Treynor Ratio (0.131) 

Standard Deviation* 11.29% 
  

*Annualized 
 
 

Months Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19 Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19 Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 

Performance -5.94% -5.40% 10.37% 7.87% 13.16% 5.17% 2.49% -10.63% -25.80% 14.69% -1.33% 3.79% 

Benchmark -6.56% -8.59% 10.65% 9.17% 12.31% 5.29% 1.58% -11.39% -24.20% 23.26% -0.64% -0.32% 

Diff 0.62% 3.19% -0.28% -1.30% 0.85% -0.12% 0.91% 0.76% -1.60% -8.57% -0.69% 4.11% 
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 Changes in total NAV and NAV per unit since the last review period 
 

 FY19  FY20 

Net Assets PKR Mn  86.87 80.70 

NAV/unit (PKR)  80.32 80.67 
 

 Equity Review 

Stock market finished fiscal year 2020 at 34,421 with total rise of just 1.53% for the whole year. After starting the year 
on a depressed note and making a low near 28,000 in August 2019 market saw huge 53% rebound and made a high 
near 43,000 in January 2020. It started its retreat again in February when coronavirus pandemic started to spread 
beyond China and as a result PSX along with global rout in equities made a low near 27,000 in March (down 37% 
from its January high). This is third year in a narrow that equities have disappointed investors. The market had 
finished 2019 with 19% drop and the preceding year 2018 with 10% loss. Last year has proved to be one of the most 
volatile years for the market where benchmark index had moved into wide gyrations. Pakistani economy had started 
to show signs of stabilization by the first half of the fiscal year but things reversed again after the outbreak of covid19 
in February when the country (like the rest of the world) was put in semi lockdown to control the spread of virus.  

Global equities eroded a huge 30% in less than a month by late March 2020. However since those lows in March 
equities have rebounded strongly and ended last quarter with sharp gains. What is it that drove this sharp rebound in 
equities in recent past? First is very low interest rates (central banks have responded by pushing rates lower) and 
second is progress on coronavirus control where investors have started to believe that the worst is over and the world 
will find a cure for this in few months.  

In Pakistan, SBP has pushed the policy rate lower by 625bps in past four months to 7% (from 13.25%). Last cut of 
100bps was made in June 2020 in an unscheduled meeting by the monetary policy committee. Short term yields 
have now moved closer to 7% and long term (10 year) moved to around 8.65% by June end. These low rates on 
fixed income instruments have made equities attractive for long term investors once again. Historically, Pakistani 
equities have performed well during times of very low interest rates, between the years 2004-2007 and then 2013-
2017 when the policy rate was brought down to around mid-single digit number. Lower interest rates had given 
tremendous boost to equities and real estate during those years and both these low interest rate stages were 
followed by sharp reversal in interest rates and burst in asset prices such as equities and real estate. This time 
around the economy is facing a new situation much different and difficult than it had seen in those years, but the key 
thing is that interest rates are lower and as a result equities should offer better returns compared to fixed income 
instruments. Major comforting point for the stock market and broader economy has been the reversal in corona virus 
spread in the country as the number of active infections have dropped sharply lower to around 16,000 from over 
100,000 earlier in July. The pickup in economic activities is reflected in monthly sales numbers of many industries 
including cement, automobile, textiles, petroleum products, electricity generation. In addition, tax collections in the 
first month of July 2020 have exceeded the target and reported at Rs300bn an increase of 15% compared to the 
corresponding month of last year. If this momentum is maintained and virus situation is brought under control earlier 
than initially estimated (which seems to be the case now), it will contribute in reviving the vital services sectors (travel, 
transportation, tourism, restaurants, hotels, shopping centers) thus improving prospects for upward revision in GDP 
growth target for the FY21. Keeping in view the improving macro and sectors specific factors, index next level on the 
upside is near 43,000 (January 2020 high around 43,500 Index has reached the levels last seen in earlier March 
2020). For the year ending June 2021, our upside target for the index is near 45,000. 

 Economic Review 

Contraction in GDP in 4Q20- growth to rebound in FY21  

Economy suffered one of its major shocks from covid19 as lockdown situation from March-June led to contraction in 
GDP by 0.4% (provisional) during FY20. Agriculture sector recorded growth of 2.67%, while manufacturing and 
services declined by 2.64% and 0.59% respectively in FY20. Large scale manufacturing (LSM) declined by 10.17% in 
the year, while it began to improve on MoM basis in June showing an increase of 16.8% compared to May 2020. 

For next year, government is targeting GDP growth of 2.1% while IMF/World Bank growth forecast is 1%. We believe 
GDP growth now appears to be higher than what was initially estimated. In our view, GDP growth will surge to 3-4% 
level in FY21 as covid situation has largely been brought under control in the country as of late and we have seen 
pickup in economic activities with strong jump in industrial growth in July as evident from cement, steel, automobile, 
petroleum products sales numbers. As covid situation improves further, we are likely to see services sectors growth 
also picking up such as transportation, traveling, tourism, hotels, and restaurants. Agriculture sector was impacted by 
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locust attack on crops on wider scale during past four months, however, if timely measures are taken growth could be 
revived in the current year.    

Decline in FBR taxes were cushioned by very higher surplus profits of SBP in FY20 

Tax collections during last four months fell sharply lower due to covid lockdown in the country. Total collections for 
the year were Rs 3.998 trillion as against the revised target of Rs 4.8 trillion (and start of the year target of Rs 5.5 
trillion). June saw improved performance in tax collections as initially the target was set around 3.9trillion before the 
budget announcement. Non-tax revenues recorded major increase to Rs 1.448trillion (62% higher than the budget) 
mainly due to significant jump in surplus profit of SBP which was recorded at Rs 935bn. Other taxes were recorded at 
Rs 336bn. Thus total revenues collected during the year were Rs 5.782 trillion.  

Tax collection target for FBR at Rs 4.96trillion in FY21 from around 4trillion in the previous year is 23% higher. Most 
likely growth in these taxes could safely be assumed to grow at 15% (to Rs 4.6trillion) given the rebound in economic 
activities, however, 23% increase may be difficult to achieve. Many businesses and services sectors are operating at 
lower levels or partially operative, it seems quite unlikely that tax collections will show improvement in 1Q and most 
likely to remain at low level. Provided Covid situation comes under control by the end of 1Q, we can expect significant 
pickup in economic activities in subsequent quarters thus enabling FBR to see growth in tax collections. Non-tax 
revenues (under the lead of SBP profits) and other taxes have been projected to be around Rs 1.6 trillion in FY21 
compared to Rs 1.8 trillion in FY20,thus total revenues for FY21 are projected to increase to Rs 6.2 trillion compared 
to government own estimate of Rs 6.5tr.   

Debt burden will remain high in FY21 

Final numbers of year end June Pakistan debt position is not yet published. Till May 2020, central government has 
accumulated Rs 35 trillion in total debt. Domestic debt (excluding liabilities and private sector debt) is around Rs 24 
trillion and foreign debt is Rs 11 trillion. Total increase is around Rs3.3 trillion during the year, mostly reflecting the 
fiscal deficit of the year which forces the government to borrow more. In FY21, government has budgeted to raise 
external receipts of $14bn (Rs 2.2 trillion) during 2021, almost same amount as of last year. Out of this $8bn will be 
used for repayment of old loans. At the same time, capital receipts are budgeted to increase by almost 51% to Rs 1.5 
trillion. This includes borrowings through the issue of T-Bills, PIBs, Sukuks and NSS.  

Fiscal deficit will remain elevated  

Final figure of fiscal deficit for FY20 has come at 8.1% compared to earlier estimates of 9.1%. During the year, fiscal 
deficit has improved to 8.1% of GDP from 8.9% in the preceding year FY19. Fiscal deficit of Rs 3,376bn was plugged 
through domestic borrowing of Rs 2,480bn and external borrowings of Rs 896bn. The government has estimated to 
bring the deficit to 7.1% in FY21. However, there are less prospects of improvement in fiscal deficit in current year as 
we believe government has made its intentions very clear as it has begun to make allocations on development 
expenditures on priority base to help stimulate economic growth. With no room to cut current expenditures which will 
grow by around 10% along with extra spending on covid related expenditures and government is going ahead with 
spending on its planned development expenditures on dams and CPEC projects, therefore, we are not seeing any 
possibility of reduction in fiscal deficit and it is likely to stay around 8% of GDP. 

Significant improvement in current account deficit in FY20 

Current account deficit for the year ended June 2020 fell sharply lower by 78% to $2.96bn from $13.43 in the 
previous year. Major contributing factor in drastic reduction of C/A deficit was 18% decline in imports ($9.5bn) during 
the year to $42.4bn from $51.9bn. Exports also fell (7% decline to $22.5bn compared to $24.2 in FY19) during the 
year mostly impacted by covid lockdown period during March-June 2020.  Workers remittances during the year 
increased by 6.3% to $23.12 from $21.74 in the previous year. This is the first time in Pakistan history that the 
country earned more in remittances than its exports.  

In July exports have started to increase showing growth of 5.8% to $1.998bn from $1.889 in the preceding year while 
imports declined by 4.2% to $3.54bn from $3.696bn thus trade deficit reduced by 14.7% to $1.54bn in the first month 
of the new fiscal year. Going forward into FY21, while there seems to be less fear of increase in current account 
deficit at the moment given the relatively lower international oil prices, however, every economic recovery in the past 
has not been without significant jump in imports and we don’t see any reason why imports will not increase when 
there is pickup in domestic economic activities. If exports start to recover its lost ground and grow by around 7% 
along with stable remittances while growth in imports don’t overshoot say above10%, Pakistan will be able to keep a 
check on its current account deficit. Any decline in CA deficit which is mainly the result of contraction in imports is the 
sign of slow economic activity, and given the government emphasize on reviving economic growth we should see 
growth in imports will start appearing in coming months.  
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SBP aggressive cuts in policy rate to 7%  

SBP kept the policy at higher level of 13.25% till March and only responded to decrease it after the covid hit the 
economy badly. During these four months the rate was brought down to 7%, one of the steepest rate cuts in the 
country’s history and compared to the rest of the world. Monthly CPI showed rising trend till January 2020 when it hit 
the highest level of 14.6% and then began its decline to 8.6% by June 2020. Average CPI for the year came at 
10.74%.  

For next year, government and SBP own estimates indicate CPI to average between 7-8%. In the first month of July, 
CPI was recorded at 9.3%. Keeping in view, inflation expectations in the country there is no possibility for further cut 
in the policy rate during the remaining months of this fiscal year. At the same time, we don’t expect SBP will resort to 
tightening so soon during the year even if the rate of inflation is slightly above the target level. We expect SBP will 
keep the policy rate unchanged at 7% in the foreseeable future, perhaps during the whole of this fiscal year. Primary 
consideration for Pakistani central bank, like most of other central banks world over, is revival of economic growth 
after the havoc done by coronavirus which has pushed economic growth in negative in recent months due to 
lockdowns. Increasing the policy rate too soon in response to uptick in monthly CPI numbers will prove 
counterproductive to revive economic growth. Most importantly, if the balance of payment situation remains in control 
and current account deficit stays lower, SBP will have less worries over Rupee depreciation and will not be forced to 
push interest rates higher to maintain currency stability.   

 

Distribution made out of Collective Investment Scheme 
 
 

Distribution 
 

Income distribution made by the Fund was Nil for FY20  

 NAV per unit as on  

 Cum - NAV (PKR) 80.67 

 Ex - NAV (PKR) 80.67 
 
Description and explanation of any significant changes in the state of affairs of the Collective Investment 
Scheme during the period and up till the date of the manager's report, not otherwise disclosed in the 
financial statements 
There were no significant changes in the state of affairs during the year under review. 

Unit Holding Pattern 
 

Category 
Number of Unit 
Holders 

Individuals 20.13% 

Banks / DFIs 0.00% 

Associates 62.80% 

Others 17.07% 

Total 100% 

 

Circumstances that materially affect any interest of the unit holders  

Investment is subject to market risk 

Disclosure if the Asset Management Company or its delegate, if any, receives any soft commission (i.e. 
goods and services) from its broker(s) or dealer(s) by virtue of transactions conducted by the Collective 
Investment Scheme, disclosure of the following:- 
The Management Company and / or any of its delegates have not received any soft commission from its brokers / 
dealers by virtue of transactions conducted by the Fund. 
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PERFORMANCE TABLE / KEY FINANCIAL DATA

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

000's 000's 000's 000's 000's

Description

Net Assets  80,705 86,874 111,451 236,436 256,011

Net Income/(loss) 5,367 -28,281 -46,179 28,338 43,629

Total return of the Fund 1.97 -25.19 -21.47 17.02 7.3

Total dividend distribution - - - - -

Capital Growth -25.19 -21.47 17.02 7.3

Average Annual Return

One Year - in percentage 1.97% -25.19% -21.47% 17.02% 7.30%

Two Year - in percentage -11.61% -23.33% -2.23% 12.16% 6.59%

Three Year- in percentage -14.90% -9.88% 0.95% 10.07% 5.92%

Net assets value per unit - Rupees 80.67 80.32 107.38 136.73 127.7

Highest offer price per unit * 109.66 112.93 139.82 157.85 157.85

Lowest offer price per unit * 66.02 79.93 102.58 122.25 122.25

Year-end offer price per unit * 82.29 82.15 109.81 139.47 139.47

Highest repurchase price per unit * 107.51 110.43 136.72 157.85 154.75

Lowest repurchase price per unit * 64.72 78.16 100.31 122.25 119.85

Year-end repurchase price per unit * 80.32 107.38 136.73 136.73

Final distribution per unit - - - -

Announcement date - - - -

Total Distribution as % of par value - - - -

Number of units in issue - Number 1,000,428 1,081,587 1,037,959 1,729,170 2,004,793

Notes:

*AWT Islamic Stock Fund was launched on 04 March 2014.

* Past performance is not necessarily indicative of future performance and

 that certificate prices and investment returns may go down, as well as up
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FUND MANAGER’S REPORT 

 

 

Category and type of Collective Investment Scheme 
Equities Scheme/ Open end 

 

Objective of Collective Investment Scheme 
The objective of AWT-SF is to achieve long term capital growth by investing mainly in listed equity 
securities 

 

Explanation as to whether the Collective Investment Scheme has achieved its stated objectives 
The collective investment scheme achieved its stated objectives. 

 

Benchmark(s) relevant to the Collective Investment Scheme 
The collective investment scheme achieved its stated objectives. 
 

Comparison of the Collective Investment Scheme's performance during the period compared 
with the said benchmarks 
 

 
Strategies and policies employed during the period under review in relation to the Collective 

Investment Scheme's performance 

During FY20, SF delivered return of 1.48% in FY20 KSE-100 index 1.53% YoY in the year. Top out performing 

stocks in 4Q FY20 in the portfolio were NML, NCL, FFC, GATM, FCEPL, SEARL and BAFL. Major holding which 

were offloaded during the year were OGDC, PSO and MUGHAL. Stocks which were added/increased during the 

year were FCEP, Searl, Glaxo, NML, NBP, MEBL, FML and FFC. Net asset of the fund reduce to PKR 60.63mn 

by June 2020 from PKR 85.14mn as of June end 2019 mainly due to decline in shares prices of the portfolio. As 

on June30, 2020, exposure in equities was 84.29% and bank placement at 11%. The fund’s Net Asset Value 
(NAV per unit) on June 30, 2020 was PKR 81.74. 

Collective Investment Scheme's asset allocation as at the date of the report and particulars of 
significant changes in asset allocation since the last report (if applicable) 

 

   

Portfolio Allocation Jun-19 Jun-20 

Equity Securities 72.06% 80.26% 

Cash at Bank 21.61% 11.29% 

Others including receivables 6.33% 8.45% 

Total 100.00% 100.00% 

 
Collective Investment Scheme's performance 

 

Fund 

Sharpe Ratio* -0.16 

Treynor Ratio -0.048 

Standard Deviation* 20.87% 
  

*Annualized 
 

Months Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19 Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19 Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 

Performance -10.71% -3.49% 10.61% 7.00% 17.15% 2.08% 3.43% -6.84% -22.88% 10.03% -1.92% 3.80% 

Benchmark -5.79% -7.10% 8.11% 6.62% 14.86% 3.68% 2.20% -8.76% -23.04% 16.69% -0.53% 1.45% 

Diff 4.92% 3.61% 2.50% 0.38% 2.29% 1.60% 1.23% 1.92% 0.16% 6.66% 1.39% 2.35% 
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Changes in total NAV and NAV per unit since the last review period 
 

 

FY19 FY20 

Net Assets PKR Mn 85.13 60.63 

NAV/unit (PKR) 80.53 81.74 
 

Equity Review 

Stock market finished fiscal year 2020 at 34,421 with total rise of just 1.53% for the whole year. After starting the 
year on a depressed note and making a low near 28,000 in August 2019 market saw huge 53% rebound and 
made a high near 43,000 in January 2020. It started its retreat again in February when coronavirus pandemic 
started to spread beyond China and as a result PSX along with global rout in equities made a low near 27,000 in 
March (down 37% from its January high). This is third year in a narrow that equities have disappointed investors. 
The market had finished 2019 with 19% drop and the preceding year 2018 with 10% loss. Last year has proved 
to be one of the most volatile years for the market where benchmark index had moved into wide gyrations. 
Pakistani economy had started to show signs of stabilization by the first half of the fiscal year but things reversed 
again after the outbreak of covid19 in February when the country (like the rest of the world) was put in semi 
lockdown to control the spread of virus.  

Global equities eroded a huge 30% in less than a month by late March 2020. However since those lows in March 
equities have rebounded strongly and ended last quarter with sharp gains. What is it that drove this sharp 
rebound in equities in recent past? First is very low interest rates (central banks have responded by pushing 
rates lower) and second is progress on coronavirus control where investors have started to believe that the worst 
is over and the world will find a cure for this in few months.  

In Pakistan, SBP has pushed the policy rate lower by 625bps in past four months to 7% (from 13.25%). Last cut 
of 100bps was made in June 2020 in an unscheduled meeting by the monetary policy committee. Short term 
yields have now moved closer to 7% and long term (10 year) moved to around 8.65% by June end. These low 
rates on fixed income instruments have made equities attractive for long term investors once again. Historically, 
Pakistani equities have performed well during times of very low interest rates, between the years 2004-2007 and 
then 2013-2017 when the policy rate was brought down to around mid-single digit number. Lower interest rates 
had given tremendous boost to equities and real estate during those years and both these low interest rate 
stages were followed by sharp reversal in interest rates and burst in asset prices such as equities and real 
estate. This time around the economy is facing a new situation much different and difficult than it had seen in 
those years, but the key thing is that interest rates are lower and as a result equities should offer better returns 
compared to fixed income instruments. Major comforting point for the stock market and broader economy has 
been the reversal in corona virus spread in the country as the number of active infections have dropped sharply 
lower to around 16,000 from over 100,000 earlier in July. The pickup in economic activities is reflected in monthly 
sales numbers of many industries including cement, automobile, textiles, petroleum products, electricity 
generation. In addition, tax collections in the first month of July 2020 have exceeded the target and reported at 
Rs300bn an increase of 15% compared to the corresponding month of last year. If this momentum is maintained 
and virus situation is brought under control earlier than initially estimated (which seems to be the case now), it 
will contribute in reviving the vital services sectors (travel, transportation, tourism, restaurants, hotels, shopping 
centers) thus improving prospects for upward revision in GDP growth target for the FY21. Keeping in view the 
improving macro and sectors specific factors, index next level on the upside is near 43,000 (January 2020 high 
around 43,500 Index has reached the levels last seen in earlier March 2020). For the year ending June 2021, our 
upside target for the index is near 45,000. 

Economic Review 

Contraction in GDP in 4Q20- growth to rebound in FY21  

Economy suffered one of its major shocks from covid19 as lockdown situation from March-June led to 
contraction in GDP by 0.4% (provisional) during FY20. Agriculture sector recorded growth of 2.67%, while 
manufacturing and services declined by 2.64% and 0.59% respectively in FY20. Large scale manufacturing 
(LSM) declined by 10.17% in the year, while it began to improve on MoM basis in June showing an increase of 
16.8% compared to May 2020. 

For next year, government is targeting GDP growth of 2.1% while IMF/World Bank growth forecast is 1%. We 
believe GDP growth now appears to be higher than what was initially estimated. In our view, GDP growth will 
surge to 3-4% level in FY21 as covid situation has largely been brought under control in the country as of late 
and we have seen pickup in economic activities with strong jump in industrial growth in July as evident from 
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cement, steel, automobile, petroleum products sales numbers. As covid situation improves further, we are likely 
to see services sectors growth also picking up such as transportation, traveling, tourism, hotels, and restaurants. 
Agriculture sector was impacted by locust attack on crops on wider scale during past four months, however, if 
timely measures are taken growth could be revived in the current year.    

Decline in FBR taxes were cushioned by very higher surplus profits of SBP in FY20 

Tax collections during last four months fell sharply lower due to covid lockdown in the country. Total collections 
for the year were Rs 3.998 trillion as against the revised target of Rs 4.8 trillion (and start of the year target of Rs 
5.5 trillion). June saw improved performance in tax collections as initially the target was set around 3.9trillion 
before the budget announcement. Non-tax revenues recorded major increase to Rs 1.448trillion (62% higher 
than the budget) mainly due to significant jump in surplus profit of SBP which was recorded at Rs 935bn. Other 
taxes were recorded at Rs 336bn. Thus total revenues collected during the year were Rs 5.782 trillion.  

Tax collection target for FBR at Rs 4.96trillion in FY21 from around 4trillion in the previous year is 23% higher. 
Most likely growth in these taxes could safely be assumed to grow at 15% (to Rs 4.6trillion) given the rebound in 
economic activities, however, 23% increase may be difficult to achieve. Many businesses and services sectors 
are operating at lower levels or partially operative, it seems quite unlikely that tax collections will show 
improvement in 1Q and most likely to remain at low level. Provided Covid situation comes under control by the 
end of 1Q, we can expect significant pickup in economic activities in subsequent quarters thus enabling FBR to 
see growth in tax collections. Non-tax revenues (under the lead of SBP profits) and other taxes have been 
projected to be around Rs 1.6 trillion in FY21 compared to Rs 1.8 trillion in FY20,thus total revenues for FY21 are 
projected to increase to Rs 6.2 trillion compared to government own estimate of Rs 6.5tr.   

Debt burden will remain high in FY21 

Final numbers of year end June Pakistan debt position is not yet published. Till May 2020, central government 
has accumulated Rs 35 trillion in total debt. Domestic debt (excluding liabilities and private sector debt) is around 
Rs 24 trillion and foreign debt is Rs 11 trillion. Total increase is around Rs3.3 trillion during the year, mostly 
reflecting the fiscal deficit of the year which forces the government to borrow more. In FY21, government has 
budgeted to raise external receipts of $14bn (Rs 2.2 trillion) during 2021, almost same amount as of last year. 
Out of this $8bn will be used for repayment of old loans. At the same time, capital receipts are budgeted to 
increase by almost 51% to Rs 1.5 trillion. This includes borrowings through the issue of T-Bills, PIBs, Sukuks and 
NSS.  

Fiscal deficit will remain elevated  

Final figure of fiscal deficit for FY20 has come at 8.1% compared to earlier estimates of 9.1%. During the year, 
fiscal deficit has improved to 8.1% of GDP from 8.9% in the preceding year FY19. Fiscal deficit of Rs 3,376bn 
was plugged through domestic borrowing of Rs 2,480bn and external borrowings of Rs 896bn. The government 
has estimated to bring the deficit to 7.1% in FY21. However, there are less prospects of improvement in fiscal 
deficit in current year as we believe government has made its intentions very clear as it has begun to make 
allocations on development expenditures on priority base to help stimulate economic growth. With no room to cut 
current expenditures which will grow by around 10% along with extra spending on covid related expenditures and 
government is going ahead with spending on its planned development expenditures on dams and CPEC 
projects, therefore, we are not seeing any possibility of reduction in fiscal deficit and it is likely to stay around 8% 
of GDP. 

Significant improvement in current account deficit in FY20 

Current account deficit for the year ended June 2020 fell sharply lower by 78% to $2.96bn from $13.43 in the 
previous year. Major contributing factor in drastic reduction of C/A deficit was 18% decline in imports ($9.5bn) 
during the year to $42.4bn from $51.9bn. Exports also fell (7% decline to $22.5bn compared to $24.2 in FY19) 
during the year mostly impacted by covid lockdown period during March-June 2020.  Workers remittances during 
the year increased by 6.3% to $23.12 from $21.74 in the previous year. This is the first time in Pakistan history 
that the country earned more in remittances than its exports.  

In July exports have started to increase showing growth of 5.8% to $1.998bn from $1.889 in the preceding year 
while imports declined by 4.2% to $3.54bn from $3.696bn thus trade deficit reduced by 14.7% to $1.54bn in the 
first month of the new fiscal year. Going forward into FY21, while there seems to be less fear of increase in 
current account deficit at the moment given the relatively lower international oil prices, however, every economic 
recovery in the past has not been without significant jump in imports and we don’t see any reason why imports 
will not increase when there is pickup in domestic economic activities. If exports start to recover its lost ground 
and grow by around 7% along with stable remittances while growth in imports don’t overshoot say above10%, 
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Pakistan will be able to keep a check on its current account deficit. Any decline in CA deficit which is mainly the 
result of contraction in imports is the sign of slow economic activity, and given the government emphasize on 
reviving economic growth we should see growth in imports will start appearing in coming months.  

       SBP aggressive cuts in policy rate to 7%  

SBP kept the policy at higher level of 13.25% till March and only responded to decrease it after the covid hit the 
economy badly. During these four months the rate was brought down to 7%, one of the steepest rate cuts in the 
country’s history and compared to the rest of the world. Monthly CPI showed rising trend till January 2020 when 
it hit the highest level of 14.6% and then began its decline to 8.6% by June 2020. Average CPI for the year came 
at 10.74%.  

For next year, government and SBP own estimates indicate CPI to average between 7-8%. In the first month of 
July, CPI was recorded at 9.3%. Keeping in view, inflation expectations in the country there is no possibility for 
further cut in the policy rate during the remaining months of this fiscal year. At the same time, we don’t expect 
SBP will resort to tightening so soon during the year even if the rate of inflation is slightly above the target level. 
We expect SBP will keep the policy rate unchanged at 7% in the foreseeable future, perhaps during the whole of 
this fiscal year. Primary consideration for Pakistani central bank, like most of other central banks world over, is 
revival of economic growth after the havoc done by coronavirus which has pushed economic growth in negative 
in recent months due to lockdowns. Increasing the policy rate too soon in response to uptick in monthly CPI 
numbers will prove counterproductive to revive economic growth. Most importantly, if the balance of payment 
situation remains in control and current account deficit stays lower, SBP will have less worries over Rupee 
depreciation and will not be forced to push interest rates higher to maintain currency stability.   

Distribution made out of Collective Investment Scheme 
 
 

Distribution 
 

Income distribution made by the Fund was Nil for FY20  

NAV per unit as on  

Cum - NAV (PKR) 81.74 

Ex - NAV (PKR) 81.74 
 

Description and explanation of any significant changes in the state of affairs of the Collective Investment 
Scheme during the period and up till the date of the manager's report, not otherwise disclosed in the 
financial statements 
There were no significant changes in the state of affairs during the year under review. 

Unit Holding Pattern 
 

Category 
Number of Unit 
Holders 

Individuals 2% 

Banks / DFIs 0% 

Associates 9% 

Others 88% 

Total 100% 

 

Circumstances that materially affect any interest of the unit holders  

Investment is subject to market risk 

Disclosure if the Asset Management Company or its delegate, if any, receives any soft commission (i.e. 
goods and services) from its broker(s) or dealer(s) by virtue of transactions conducted by the Collective 
Investment Scheme, disclosure of the following:- 
The Management Company and / or any of its delegates have not received any soft commission from its brokers 
/ dealers by virtue of transactions conducted by the Fund. 
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PERFORMANCE TABLE / KEY FINANCIAL DATA

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

000's 000's 000's 000's 000's

Description

Net Assets 60,632 85,125 113,249 205,317 234,286

Net Income 6,365 -26,733 -34,388 33,179 15,728

Total return of the Fund 3.61 -24.01 -19.47 22.36 4.99

Total dividend distribution - - - - 2.36

Capital Growth -24.01 -19.47 22.36 2.63

Average Annual Return

One Year - in percentage 3.61% -23.99% -19.47% 22.36% 4.99%

Two Year - in percentage -10.19% -21.73% 1.45% 13.68% 7.05%

Three Year- in percentage -13.28% -7.03% 2.63% 12.15% n/a

Net assets value per unit - Rupees 81.74 80.53 105.97 131.59 109.79

Highest offer price per unit * 105.21 111.9 135.62 149.62 114.69

Lowest offer price per unit * 66.94 80.62 99.57 109.77 105.19

Year-end offer price per unit * 83.38 82.35 108.37 131.59 111.99

Highest repurchase price per unit * 103.14 109.42 132.62 149.62 112.44

Lowest repurchase price per unit * 65.62 78.83 97.36 109.77 103.12

Year-end repurchase price per unit * 81.74 80.53 105.97 131.59 109.79

Final distribution per unit - - - - 2.36

Announcement date - - - - 9-Aug-16

Total Distribution as % of par value - - - - 2.36

Number of units in issue - Number 741,754 1,057,116 1,068,661 1,560,304 2,133,888

Notes:

*AWT Stock Fund was launched on 13 March 2015.

* Past performance is not necessarily indicative of future performance and that

 certificate prices and investment returns may go down, as well as up.
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FUND MANAGER’S REPORT 

 

 

Category and type of Collective Investment Scheme 
Asset Allocation Scheme/ Open end 
 

Objective of Collective Investment Scheme 
The objective of AWT-AAF is to earn competitive returns by investing in the various asset classes/instruments 
based on the market outlook. 
 

Explanation as to whether the Collective Investment Scheme has achieved its stated objectives 
The collective investment scheme achieved its stated objectives. 
 

Benchmark(s) relevant to the Collective Investment Scheme 
KMI - 30 Index 
 

Benchmark(s) relevant to the Collective Investment Scheme 
Weighted average of 6 month KIBOR and KSE - 100 Index as per the amount invested in equities and fixed 
income investments including cash & cash equivalent respectively. 
 
Comparison of the Collective Investment Scheme's performance during the period compared with 
the said benchmarks 
 

Months Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19 Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19 Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 

Performance -3.03% 0.07% 3.80% 2.13% 5.65% 3.34% 3.15% 3.01% -1.04% -0.64% -0.37% -1.00% 

Benchmark -0.56% -0.76% 2.86% 2.85% 6.29% 2.00% 1.63% 0.76% -1.47% 0.46% -0.02% 0.05% 

Diff 2.47% 0.83% 0.94% 0.72% 0.64% 1.34% 1.52% 2.25% 0.43% 1.10% 0.35% -1.05% 

 

Strategies and policies employed during the period under review in relation to the Collective 

Investment Scheme's performance 

During FY20, AAF generated return of 13.12% in FY20 compared to its bench mark’s return 8.33%. We have started 
AWT Asset Allocation fund merger with and into AWT Stock Fund. The net assets of the fund were recorded at 7.45 

million as of June’20 from net assets of 7.53 million in Mar’20. The fund’s Net Asset value (NAV per unit) on June 30, 
2020 was PKR 89.16. 

Collective Investment Scheme's asset allocation as at the date of the report and particulars of 
significant changes in asset allocation since the last report (if applicable) 
 

Portfolio Allocation Jun-19 Jun-20 

Equity Securities 26.43% 1.94% 

Placement with Banks 6.14% 0% 

Cash at Bank 64.75% 42.27% 

Others including receivables 2.67% 55.79% 

Total 100.00% 100.00% 
 

· 
Collective Investment Scheme's performance 
 

 Fund 

Sharpe Ratio* -0.57 

Information Ratio -0.061 

Standard Deviation* 6.88% 
 

*Annualized 
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Changes in total NAV and NAV per unit since the last review period 
 

 FY19  FY20 

Net Assets PKR Mn 218.06 7.45 

NAV/unit (PKR) 102.45 89.16 
 

 
 
Equity Market Review 
Stock market finished fiscal year 2020 at 34,421 with total rise of just 1.53% for the whole year. After starting the year 
on a depressed note and making a low near 28,000 in August 2019 market saw huge 53% rebound and made a high 
near 43,000 in January 2020. It started its retreat again in February when coronavirus pandemic started to spread 
beyond China and as a result PSX along with global rout in equities made a low near 27,000 in March (down 37% from 
its January high). This is third year in a narrow that equities have disappointed investors. The market had finished 2019 
with 19% drop and the preceding year 2018 with 10% loss. Last year has proved to be one of the most volatile years 
for the market where benchmark index had moved into wide gyrations. Pakistani economy had started to show signs 
of stabilization by the first half of the fiscal year but things reversed again after the outbreak of covid19 in February 
when the country (like the rest of the world) was put in semi lockdown to control the spread of virus.  
 
Global equities eroded a huge 30% in less than a month by late March 2020. However since those lows in March 
equities have rebounded strongly and ended last quarter with sharp gains. What is it that drove this sharp rebound in 
equities in recent past? First is very low interest rates (central banks have responded by pushing rates lower) and 
second is progress on coronavirus control where investors have started to believe that the worst is over and the world 
will find a cure for this in few months.  
 
In Pakistan, SBP has pushed the policy rate lower by 625bps in past four months to 7% (from 13.25%). Last cut of 
100bps was made in June 2020 in an unscheduled meeting by the monetary policy committee. Short term yields have 
now moved closer to 7% and long term (10 year) moved to around 8.65% by June end. These low rates on fixed income 
instruments have made equities attractive for long term investors once again. Historically, Pakistani equities have 
performed well during times of very low interest rates, between the years 2004-2007 and then 2013-2017 when the 
policy rate was brought down to around mid-single digit number. Lower interest rates had given tremendous boost to 
equities and real estate during those years and both these low interest rate stages were followed by sharp reversal in 
interest rates and burst in asset prices such as equities and real estate. This time around the economy is facing a new 
situation much different and difficult than it had seen in those years, but the key thing is that interest rates are lower 
and as a result equities should offer better returns compared to fixed income instruments. Major comforting point for 
the stock market and broader economy has been the reversal in corona virus spread in the country as the number of 
active infections have dropped sharply lower to around 16,000 from over 100,000 earlier in July. The pickup in economic 
activities is reflected in monthly sales numbers of many industries including cement, automobile, textiles, petroleum 
products, electricity generation. In addition, tax collections in the first month of July 2020 have exceeded the target and 
reported at Rs300bn an increase of 15% compared to the corresponding month of last year. If this momentum is 
maintained and virus situation is brought under control earlier than initially estimated (which seems to be the case now), 
it will contribute in reviving the vital services sectors (travel, transportation, tourism, restaurants, hotels, shopping 
centers) thus improving prospects for upward revision in GDP growth target for the FY21. Keeping in view the improving 
macro and sectors specific factors, index next level on the upside is near 43,000 (January 2020 high around 43,500 
Index has reached the levels last seen in earlier March 2020). For the year ending June 2021, our upside target for the 
index is near 45,000. 

 

 

Economic Review 

Contraction in GDP in 4Q20- growth to rebound in FY21  

Economy suffered one of its major shocks from covid19 as lockdown situation from March-June led to contraction in 
GDP by 0.4% (provisional) during FY20. Agriculture sector recorded growth of 2.67%, while manufacturing and services 
declined by 2.64% and 0.59% respectively in FY20. Large scale manufacturing (LSM) declined by 10.17% in the year, 
while it began to improve on MoM basis in June showing an increase of 16.8% compared to May 2020. 

For next year, government is targeting GDP growth of 2.1% while IMF/World Bank growth forecast is 1%. We believe 
GDP growth now appears to be higher than what was initially estimated. In our view, GDP growth will surge to 3-4% 



AWT Asset Allocation Fund  

 

 
level in FY21 as covid situation has largely been brought under control in the country as of late and we have seen 
pickup in economic activities with strong jump in industrial growth in July as evident from cement, steel, automobile, 
petroleum products sales numbers. As covid situation improves further, we are likely to see services sectors growth 
also picking up such as transportation, traveling, tourism, hotels, and restaurants. Agriculture sector was impacted by 
locust attack on crops on wider scale during past four months, however, if timely measures are taken growth could be 
revived in the current year.    
 
Decline in FBR taxes were cushioned by very higher surplus profits of SBP in FY20 
Tax collections during last four months fell sharply lower due to covid lockdown in the country. Total collections for the 
year were Rs 3.998 trillion as against the revised target of Rs 4.8 trillion (and start of the year target of Rs 5.5 trillion). 
June saw improved performance in tax collections as initially the target was set around 3.9trillion before the budget 
announcement. Non-tax revenues recorded major increase to Rs 1.448trillion (62% higher than the budget) mainly due 
to significant jump in surplus profit of SBP which was recorded at Rs 935bn. Other taxes were recorded at Rs 336bn. 
Thus total revenues collected during the year were Rs 5.782 trillion.  
Tax collection target for FBR at Rs 4.96trillion in FY21 from around 4trillion in the previous year is 23% higher. Most 
likely growth in these taxes could safely be assumed to grow at 15% (to Rs 4.6trillion) given the rebound in economic 
activities, however, 23% increase may be difficult to achieve. Many businesses and services sectors are operating at 
lower levels or partially operative, it seems quite unlikely that tax collections will show improvement in 1Q and most 
likely to remain at low level. Provided Covid situation comes under control by the end of 1Q, we can expect significant 
pickup in economic activities in subsequent quarters thus enabling FBR to see growth in tax collections. Non-tax 
revenues (under the lead of SBP profits) and other taxes have been projected to be around Rs 1.6 trillion in FY21 
compared to Rs 1.8 trillion in FY20,thus total revenues for FY21 are projected to increase to Rs 6.2 trillion compared 
to government own estimate of Rs 6.5tr.   
 

Debt burden will remain high in FY21 

Final numbers of year end June Pakistan debt position is not yet published. Till May 2020, central government has 

accumulated Rs 35 trillion in total debt. Domestic debt (excluding liabilities and private sector debt) is around Rs 24 

trillion and foreign debt is Rs 11 trillion. Total increase is around Rs3.3 trillion during the year, mostly reflecting the fiscal 

deficit of the year which forces the government to borrow more. In FY21, government has budgeted to raise external 

receipts of $14bn (Rs 2.2 trillion) during 2021, almost same amount as of last year. Out of this $8bn will be used for 

repayment of old loans. At the same time, capital receipts are budgeted to increase by almost 51% to Rs 1.5 trillion. 
This includes borrowings through the issue of T-Bills, PIBs, Sukuks and NSS.  

 
Fiscal deficit will remain elevated  
Final figure of fiscal deficit for FY20 has come at 8.1% compared to earlier estimates of 9.1%. During the year, fiscal 
deficit has improved to 8.1% of GDP from 8.9% in the preceding year FY19. Fiscal deficit of Rs 3,376bn was plugged 
through domestic borrowing of Rs 2,480bn and external borrowings of Rs 896bn. The government has estimated to 
bring the deficit to 7.1% in FY21. However, there are less prospects of improvement in fiscal deficit in current year as 
we believe government has made its intentions very clear as it has begun to make allocations on development 
expenditures on priority base to help stimulate economic growth. With no room to cut current expenditures which will 
grow by around 10% along with extra spending on covid related expenditures and government is going ahead with 
spending on its planned development expenditures on dams and CPEC projects, therefore, we are not seeing any 
possibility of reduction in fiscal deficit and it is likely to stay around 8% of GDP. 
 
 

Significant improvement in current account deficit in FY20 
Current account deficit for the year ended June 2020 fell sharply lower by 78% to $2.96bn from $13.43 in the previous 
year. Major contributing factor in drastic reduction of C/A deficit was 18% decline in imports ($9.5bn) during the year to 
$42.4bn from $51.9bn. Exports also fell (7% decline to $22.5bn compared to $24.2 in FY19) during the year mostly 
impacted by covid lockdown period during March-June 2020.  Workers remittances during the year increased by 6.3% 
to $23.12 from $21.74 in the previous year. This is the first time in Pakistan history that the country earned more in 
remittances than its exports.  
In July exports have started to increase showing growth of 5.8% to $1.998bn from $1.889 in the preceding year while 
imports declined by 4.2% to $3.54bn from $3.696bn thus trade deficit reduced by 14.7% to $1.54bn in the first month 
of the new fiscal year. Going forward into FY21, while there seems to be less fear of increase in current account deficit 
at the moment given the relatively lower international oil prices, however, every economic recovery in the past has not 
been without significant jump in imports and we don’t see any reason why imports will not increase when there is pickup 
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in domestic economic activities. If exports start to recover its lost ground and grow by around 7% along with stable 
remittances while growth in imports don’t overshoot say above10%, Pakistan will be able to keep a check on its current 
account deficit. Any decline in CA deficit which is mainly the result of contraction in imports is the sign of slow economic 
activity, and given the government emphasize on reviving economic growth we should see growth in imports will start 

appearing in coming months.  
 

SBP aggressive cuts in policy rate to 7%  

SBP kept the policy at higher level of 13.25% till March and only responded to decrease it after the covid hit the economy 
badly. During these four months the rate was brought down to 7%, one of the steepest rate cuts in the country’s history 
and compared to the rest of the world. Monthly CPI showed rising trend till January 2020 when it hit the highest level 
of 14.6% and then began its decline to 8.6% by June 2020. Average CPI for the year came at 10.74%.  
For next year, government and SBP own estimates indicate CPI to average between 7-8%. In the first month of July, 
CPI was recorded at 9.3%. Keeping in view, inflation expectations in the country there is no possibility for further cut in 
the policy rate during the remaining months of this fiscal year. At the same time, we don’t expect SBP will resort to 
tightening so soon during the year even if the rate of inflation is slightly above the target level. We expect SBP will keep 
the policy rate unchanged at 7% in the foreseeable future, perhaps during the whole of this fiscal year. Primary 
consideration for Pakistani central bank, like most of other central banks world over, is revival of economic growth after 
the havoc done by coronavirus which has pushed economic growth in negative in recent months due to lockdowns. 
Increasing the policy rate too soon in response to uptick in monthly CPI numbers will prove counterproductive to revive 
economic growth. Most importantly, if the balance of payment situation remains in control and current account deficit 
stays lower, SBP will have less worries over Rupee depreciation and will not be forced to push interest rates higher to 
maintain currency stability.   
 
 
Money Market 
Since March 2020, SBP has reduced the policy rate from 13.25% to 7% in June as it moved aggressively to counter 
the negative impact of covid on the slowing economy. During FY’ 2020, the yield curve in the secondary market 
closed down in shorter tenor government securities TBILLS at 7.09%(-566 bps), 7.05%(-580 bps) and 7.05%(-608 
bps) in 3m, 6m and 12m tenors respectively. Similarly the longer tenor PIBs yields 3 year (-632 bps), 5 year (-577 
bps) and 10 year (-503 bps) closed at 7.53%, 8.11% and 8.69% respectively.  
Longer term yields have started to move down much earlier than the central bank cuts from March 2020. Policy rate 
was increased once in July 2019 when it was revised upward by 100bps to 13.25%. After that increase earlier in the 
year, yield curve had moved inverted with long term yields falling lower than short term rates as market started to expect 
no further increase in the policy rate. It took 9 months and the covid to hit us before SBP could move to bring the interest 
rates down. With bond prices gaining strongly during the course of the year, mutual funds having larger allocation to 
PIBs (such as our AWT Income Fund-with return of 18%) were the winners giving above average returns during the 
year. Moving forward into FY2021, we do not expect further cut in the policy rate from existing 7% in coming few 
months. The rate of inflation which is expected to stay in higher single digit (7-8%) doesn’t support further easing. Given 
this scenario of no change in the policy rate in the near term and yield curve expected range of 7-10% returns, the rate 
of returns on money market and income funds will fall in this broader range also. This is the new reality which investors 
in fixed income funds will have to adjust with in coming days. 

 
 

Distribution made out of Collective Investment Scheme 
 
 

Distribution 
 

                         Income distribution made by the Fund was Nil for FY20  

 NAV per unit as on  

 Cum - NAV (PKR) 89.16 

 Ex - NAV (PKR) 89.16 
 
Description and explanation of any significant changes in the state of affairs of the Collective Investment 
Scheme during the period and up till the date of the manager's report, not otherwise disclosed in the 
financial statements 
There were no significant changes in the state of affairs during the year under review. 
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Breakdown of unit holdings by size 
 

Category 
Number of Unit 
Holders 

Individuals 100% 

Total 100% 

 

Circumstances that materially affect any interest of the unit holders  

Investment is subject to market risk 

Disclosure if the Asset Management Company or its delegate, if any, receives any soft commission (i.e. 
goods and services) from its broker(s) or dealer(s) by virtue of transactions conducted by the Collective 
Investment Scheme, disclosure of the following:- 
The Management Company and / or any of its delegates have not received any soft commission from its brokers / 
dealers by virtue of transactions conducted by the Fund. 
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PERFORMANCE TABLE / KEY FINANCIAL DATA

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

000's 000's 000's 000's 000's

Description

Net Assets 7,454      400,434 343,008 324,155 1,389,617

Net Income 42,537    -44,429 -35,594 64 52,419

Total return of the Fund 1521.00% -13.44 -12.15 2.74 2.87

Total dividend distribution - - - - 2.07

Capital Growth -13.44 -12.15 2.74 0.8

Average Annual Return

One Year - in percentage 15.21% -13.44% -12.15% 2.74% 2.87%

Two Year - in percentage 0.89% -12.80% -4.71% 2.81% n/a

Three Year- in percentage -3.46% -7.62% -2.18% n/a n/a

Net assets value per unit - Rupees 89.16 78.82 90.98 103.56 100.8

Highest offer price per unit * 95.9 96.07 107.2 118.03 106.26

Lowest offer price per unit * 77.53 80.85 88.79 103.34 102.33

Year-end offer price per unit * 91.84 81.5 94.07 106.67 103.83

Highest repurchase price per unit * 93.1 92.92 103.68 114.59 103.16

Lowest repurchase price per unit * 75.26 78.19 85.87 100.32 99.34

Year-end repurchase price per unit * 89.16 78.82 90.98 103.56 100.8

Final distribution per unit - - - - 2.07

Announcement date - - - - 24-Jun-16

Total Distribution as % of par value - - - - 2.07

Number of units in issue - Number 83,606 5,080,283 3,770,094 3,130,120 13,785,476

Notes:

 *AWT Asset Allocation Fund was launched on 12 April 2016.

*  Past performance is not necessarily indicative of future performance and that certificate prices

    and investment returns may go down, as well as up.
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AWT Asset Allocation Fund 

Statement of Assets and Liabilities 
As at 30 June 2020 

Assets 

Note 2020 2019 

(Rupees in '000)  

Bank balances 5 5,422 262,771 

Investments 6 236 132,618 

Security deposits 7 2,600 2,600 

Dividend, advances and other receivables 8 2,948 5,644 

Deferred formation cost 9 2,893 3,391 

Total assets 14,099 407,024 

Liabilities 

Payable to AWT Investments Limited - Management Company 10 496 905 

Payable to Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee 11 1 66 

Payable to the Securities and Exchange 

Commission of Pakistan 12 41 301 

Accrued expenses and other liabilities 13 6,107 5,318 

Total liabilities 6,645 6,590 

Net assets 7,454 400,434 

Unit holders' fund (as per statement attached) 7,454 400,434 

Contingencies and commitments 14 

(Number of units)  

Number of units in issue 17 83,606 5,080,283 

(Rupees) 

Net assets value per unit 89.16 78.82 

The annexed notes 1 to 24 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

/ 

' ief ecutive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director 



AWT Asset Allocation Fund 

Income Statement 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

Income 

Note  

2020 2019 

(Rupees in 000)  

Dividend income 6,507 9,179 

Return / mark-up calculated using the effective interest method: 

- Bank balances at amotised cost 11,037 15,867 

- Certificate of Musharika - Held at amortised cost 1,541 

- Term deposit receipts - Held at amortised cost 798 

- Government Securities - Held at fair value through profit or loss 6,623 

- Clean placements at amortised cost 29 124 

Net realised gain / (loss) on sale of investments 25,109 (20,301) 

Unrealised gain / (loss) on revaluation of investments at fair value 

through profit or loss 33 (41,137) 

50,136 (34,727) 

Expenses 

Remuneration of the Management Company 10.1 4,066 6,340 

Sindh Sales Tax on the Management Company's remuneration 10.3 529 824 

Selling and marketing expenses 146 

Remuneration of Central Depository Company of Pakistan 

Limited - Trustee 11. 1 407 701 

Sindh Sales tax on Trustee remuneration 11.2 53 91 

Annual fee to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 12 41 301 

Amortisation of deferred formation cost 9 498 500 

Auditors remuneration 186 224 

Annual listing fee 27 27 

NCCPL fee 328 365 

Bank and settlement charges 450 301 

Securities transaction cost 28 

Total operating expenses 6,731 9,702 

Net income I (loss) from operating activities 43,405 (44,4291 

Provision for Sindh Workers Welfare Fund 13.2 (868) 

Net income / (loss) for the year before taxation 42,537 (44,429) 

Taxation 16 

Net income I (loss) for the year after taxation 42,537 (44,429) 

Allocation of net income for the period 

Net income for the period after taxation 42,537 (44,429) 

Income already paid on units redeemed (41,679) - 

Accounting income available for distribution 858 (44,429) 

Accounting income available for distribution 

- Relating to capital gains 6,655 

- Excluding capital gains (5,797) 

858 

The annexed notes 1 to 24 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

For AINT Investments Limited 

(Management Company) 
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AWT Asset Allocation Fund 
Statement of Comprehensive Income 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 fl 

n 

2020 2019 

(Rupees in 000)  

Net income I (loss) for the year after taxation 

Other comprehensive income for the year 

Total comprehensive income I (loss) for the year 

42,537 (44,429) 

   

42,537 (44,429) 

    

    

The annexed notes 1 to 24 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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For AWT Investments Limited 

(Management Company) 

Chief Financial Officer Director 

AWT Asset Allocation Fund 
Statement of Movement in Unit Holders Fund 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

2020 2019 

Capital lJndistributed Total Capital 

value income value 

(Rupees in 000)  

Undistributed 

income 

Total 

Net assets at beginning of the year 469,322 (68,888) 400,434 367,468 (24.459) 343,009 

Issuance of NIL units (2019: 1,658,929 units) 

- Capital value 150,930 150,930 

- Element of income / (lossl 118.902) (18,9021 

Total proceeds on issuance of units 132,028 132,028 

Redemption of 4,996,677 units (2019: 348,740 units) 

- Capital value (393,838) (393,838) (31.7 291 (31,7291 

- Element of income I (loss) (41.679) (41,679) 1,555 1.555 

Total payments on redemption of units (393,838) (41,679) (435,517) (30,1741 (30,174) 

Total comprehensive income for the year 42,537 42,537 (44,4291 144,429) 

Net assets as at end of the year 

undistributed income brought forward: 

75,484 (68,030) 7,454 469,322 (68,8881 400,434 

- Realized loss (27,751) (279) 

- Unrealized loss (41,137) 124,1801 

(68,888) (24,4591 

Accounting income available for distribution: 

Relating to capital gains 6,655 

Excluding capital gains (5,797) 

858 

Net loss for the period after taxation (44,429) 

Undistributed income at end of the year (68,030) (68,888) 

Undistributed income carried forward comprises of: 

- Realized loss (68,063) (27,751) 

- Unrealized income / (loss) 33 (41,1371 

(68,030) (68,8881 

Net assets value per unit at beginning of the year 

(Rupees) lRupeesl 

78.82 90.98 

    

Net assets value per unit at end of the year 89.16 78.82 

    

The annexed notes 1 to 24 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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For AWT Investments Limited 

(Management Company) 

Chief Financial Officer Director 

AWl Asset Allocation Fund 

Cash Flow Statement 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

Note 2020 2019 

(Rupees in 000}  

Cash flows from operating activities 

Net income / (loss) for the year before taxation 42,537 (44,429) 

Adjustments for: 

Profit on deposits with banks calculated using effective yield method (11,037) (15,867) 

Profit on Certificate of Musharika calculated using effective yield method (1,541) 

Profit on Government Securities - Held at fair value through profit or loss (6,623) 

Profit on Term deposit receipts - Held at amortised cost (798) 

Profit on Clean placements at amortised cost (29) (124) 

Dividend income (6,507) (9,179) 

Net realised (gain) / loss on sale of investments (25,109) 20,301 

Unrealised (gain) / loss on revaluation of investments at fair value through (33) 41,137 

profit or loss 

Amortisation of deferred formation cost 498 500 

(7,101) (9,202) 

Decrease / (increase) in current assets 

Investments 157,524 (24,206) 

Prepayment and other receivables (145) 110 

Security deposits 2,629 

157,379 (21,467) 

In crease / (decrease) in current liabilities 

Payable to management company (409) (1,016) 

Payable to trustee (65) 2 

Payable to Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (260) (381 

Accrued expenses and other liabilities 789 (23) 

55 (1,075) 

Profit received on Bank balances arid term deposit receipts 14,087 14,399 

Profit on government securities 6,623 

Dividend received 7,125 9,137 

Profit on Clean placements at amoritised cost 124 

Profit received on Certificate of Musharika at amortised cost 659 

Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities 178,168 (7,4251 

Cash flows from financing activities 

Amount received on issuance of units 132,028 

Amount paid on redemption of units (435,517) (30,174) 

Net cash (used in)/ generated from financing activities (435,517) 101,854 

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (257,349) 94,429 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 262,771 168,342 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 5 5,422 262,771 

The annexed notes 1 to 24 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

1. LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS 

1.1 AWT Asset Allocation Fund ('the Fund') was established under a Trust Deed, dated September 29, 2015, executed between 

AWT Investments Limited as Management Company, a company incorporated under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 

1984 (now Companies Act, 2017) and the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC) as the Trustee, also 

incorporated under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 20171. The Securities and Exchange 

Commission of Pakistan (SECP) registered the Fund as a Notified Entity on October 15, 2015, under Regulations 44 of the 

Non Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (Establishment and Regulation) Rules. The 

Management Company of the Fund has been licensed by SECP to undertake Asset Management Services and Investment 

Advisory Services as a Non-Banking Finance Company under the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and 

Regulation) Rules, 2003 (NBFC Rules). Registered office of the Management Company is situated at 3rd Floor, AWT Plaza, 

1.1. Chundrigar Road, Karachi. 

1.2 The Fund is an open end mutual Fund and is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange. The Fund offers units for public 

subscription on a continuous basis. These can be redeemed by surrendering them to the Fund at the option of the unit 

holder. 

1.3 The Scheme is an 'Open end Asset Allocation Scheme' as per the criteria for the categorisation of open end collective 

investment schemes specified by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan. The objective of the Fund is to 

achieve long term capital growth by investing mainly in listed equity securities. 

1.4 Title to the assets of the Fund is held in the name of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited as a Trustee of the 

Fund. 

1.5 As per regulation 54 (3a) of Non-Banking Finance Companies and Regulations, 2008, minimum size of an Open end Scheme 

shall be Rs. 100 million rupees at all times during the life of the scheme. Subject to the above, if at any time the size of any 

Open End Scheme falls below the minimum size specified above, the Management Company shall ensure compliance 

within three months of the breach and if the fund size remains below the minimum fund size limit for consecutive ninety 

days, the Asset Management Company shall immediately intimate the grounds to the SECP upon which it believes that the 

Open End Scheme is still commercially viable and its objective can still be achieved. Regulation 54(3d) of Non-Banking 

Finance Companies and Regulations, 2008 states that where SECP is not satisfied with the submission of Asset 

Management Company, it may direct the Asset Management Company or the trustee to revoke the open end Scheme. 

At 31 December 2019, size of AWT Asset Allocation Fund was Rs. 56.06 million. The breach of minimum size specified 

above started from 26 December 2019 due to the fact of redemption of units amounting to Rs. 367.08 million between 24th-

26th December 2019. In order to address the matter, Management Company initiated the process of merger of Asset 

Allocation Fund (AAF) with and into Stock Fund and applied for NOC with CDC on February 07, 2020 and received the said 

NOC on February 28, 2020. Just before the completion of merger in April 2020, the country was put under lockdown due to 

COVID-19 situation and hence the merger could not be completed. Due to COVID-19, the SECP allowed a general relaxation 

of further 90 days however, the same has also expired. These events indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast 

significant doubt on the Fund's ability to continue as a going concern. Subsequent to the year end, the Management 

Company has decided that instead of merger of AAF with and into Stock Fund, AAF will be converted into a money market 

fund and an investor expressed its interest to invest Rs. 100 million. Accordingly, the Management Company revoked the 

application for merger with Stock Fund and obtained the CDC (Trustee) consent for aforementioned conversion. Subsequent 

to CDC's consent another investor has expressed its interest to invest Rs. 100 million and now the aggregate amount of 

proposed investments stands at Rs. 200 million. Once Board of Directors of the Management Company approve the said 

conversion plan, approval of unitholders and SECP will be sought and the management is very much positive in the light of 

expression showed by investors to get the required approvals. 

1.6 Impact of COVID 19 

In March 2020, the World Health Organization ('WHO') declared the outbreak of the novel coronavirus (known as 

COVID-19) as a global pandemic. The rapid spread of the virus has caused governments around the world to implement 

stringent measures to help control its spread, including, without limitation, quarantines, 'stay-at-home' or 'shelter-in-place' 

orders, social-distancing mandates, travel restrictions, and closures or reduced operations for businesses, governmental 

agencies, schools and other institutions. The industry, along with global economic conditions generally, has been 

significantly disrupted by the pandemic. The COVID-19 pandemic and associated impacts on economic activity had certain 

effect on the operational and financial condition of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2020 due to increase in overall 

credit risk pertaining to the corporate debt instruments' portfolios of mutual funds, subdued equity market performance due 

to overall slowdown in economic activity and continuity of business operations. However, to reduce the impact on the 

economy and business, regulators I government across the country have introduced a host of measures on both the fiscal 

and economic fronts from time to time. 

The management of the Fund is closely monitoring the situation, and in response to the developments, the management has 

taken action to ensure the safety of its employees and other stakeholders, and initiated a number of initiatives. 



The Management Company of the Fund expects that going forward these uncertainties would reduce as the impact of 

COVID-19 on overall economy subsides and have concluded that there is no impact on current financial statements of the 

Fund. 

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 

2.1 Statement of Compliance 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in 

Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of: 

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting Standards Boar 

(IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; 

Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 along with part VIllA of the repealed Companie 

Ordinance, 1984; and 

- Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulations) Rules, 2003 (the NBFC Rules) and Non-Banking 

Finance Comoanies and Notified Entities Reaulations, 2008 (the NBFC Reaulations). 

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VillA of the repealed Companies Ordinapce. 

1984, the NBFC Rules and the NBFC Regulations differ from the IFRS Standards, the provisions of and directives issueo 

under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIllA of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules and the NBFC 

Regulations have been followed. 

2.2 Basis of measurement 

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except that investments are stated 

at fair value. 

2.3 Functional and presentation currency 

These financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the functional and presentation currency of the fund. 

All financial information presented in Pak Rupees has been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees, except otherwi'.e 

stated. 

2.4 Critical accounting estimates and judgments 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan 

requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies nd 

the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on 

historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results o 

which form the basis of making the judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily app. rent 

from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 

recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of th 

revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. The areas where various assumptions .nd 

estimates are significant to the Fund's financial statements or where judgment was exercised in the application of 

accounting policies are given below: 

a) Judgments 

Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the 

amounts recognised in the financial statements is included in note 4.2.1(i) - regarding the classification of investments. 

b) Assumptions and estimation uncertainties 

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material 

adjustment in the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2020 is included in the following notes: 

- Note 4.2.1 (ii) - Valuation of investments 

- Note 4.2.1(iv) - Impairment of financial assets and other assets 



3. Standards, interpretations and amendments to accounting and reporting standards that are not yet 

effective 

The following International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 and 

the amendments and interpretations thereto will be effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2020: 

Amendment to IFRS 3 'Business Combinations' — Definition of a Business (effective for business combinations for 

which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020). The IASB 

has issued amendments aiming to resolve the difficulties that arise when an entity determines whether it has acquired 

a business or a group of assets. The amendments clarify that to be considered a business, an acquired set of activities 

and assets must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the 

ability to create outputs. The amendments include an election to use a concentration test. The standard is effective for 

transactions in the future and therefore would not have an impact on past financial statements. 

Amendments to lAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and lAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting 

Estimates and Errors (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020). The amendments are intended 

to make the definition of material in lAS 1 easier to understand and are not intended to alter the underlying concept of 

materiality in IFRS Standards. In addition, the IASB has also issued guidance on how to make materiality judgments 

when preparing their general purpose financial statements in accordance with IFRS Standards. 

On 29 March 2018, the International Accounting Standards Board (the IASB) has issued a revised Conceptual 

Framework for Financial Reporting which is applicable immediately contains changes that will set a new direction for 

IFRS in the future. The Conceptual Framework primarily serves as a tool for the IASB to develop standards and to assist 

the IFRS Interpretations Committee in interpreting them. It does not override the requirements of individual IFRSs and 

any inconsistencies with the revised Framework will be subject to the usual due process — this means that the overall 

impact on standard setting may take some time to crystallize. The companies may use the Framework as a reference 

for selecting their accounting policies in the absence of specific IFRS requirements. In these cases, companies should 

review those policies and apply the new guidance retrospectively as of 1 January 2020, unless the new guidance 

contains specific scope outs. 

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform which amended IFRS 9, lAS 39 and IFRS 7 is applicable for annual financial periods 

beginning on or after 1 January 2020. The G20 asked the Financial Stability Board (FSB) to undertake a fundamental 

review of major interest rate benchmarks. Following the review, the FSB published a report setting out its 

recommended reforms of some major interest rate benchmarks such as IBORs. Public authorities in many jurisdictions 

have since taken steps to implement those recommendations. This has in turn led to uncertainty about the long-term 

viability of some interest rate benchmarks. In these amendments, the term 'interest rate benchmark reform' refers to 

the market-wide reform of an interest rate benchmark including its replacement with an alternative benchmark rate, 

such as that resulting from the FSB's recommendations set out in its July 2014 report 'Reforming Major Interest Rate 

Benchmarks' (the reform). The amendments made provide relief from the potential effects of the uncertainty caused by 

the reform. A company shall apply the exceptions to all hedging relationships directly affected by interest rate 

benchmark reform. The amendments are not likely to affect the financial statements of the Fund. 

Amendments to IFRS-16- IASB has issued amendments to IFRS 16 (the amendments) to provide practical relief for 

lessees in accounting for rent concessions. The amendments are effective for periods beginning on or after 1 June 

2020, with earlier application permitted. Under the standard's previous requirements, lessees assess whether rent 

concessions are lease modifications and, if so, apply the specific guidance on accounting for lease modifications. This 

generally involves remeasuring the lease liability using the revised lease payments and a revised discount rate. In light 

of the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic, and the fact that many lessees are applying the standard for the first time in 

their financial statements, the Board has provided an optional practical expedient for lessees. Under the practical 

expedient, lessees are not required to assess whether eligible rent concessions are lease modifications, and instead are 

permitted to account for them as if they were not lease modifications. Rent concessions are eligible for the practical 

expedient if they occur as a direct consequence of the COVID-1 9 pandemic and if all the following criteria are met: 

- the change in lease payments results in revised consideration for the lease that is substantially the same as, or less 

than, the consideration for the lease immediately preceding the change; 

any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and 

- there is no substantive change to the other terms and conditions of the lease. 

Classification of liabilities as current or non-current (Amendments to AS 1) effective for the annual period beginning on 

or after 1 January 2022. These amendments in the standards have been added to further clarify when a liability is 

classified as current. The standard also amends the aspect of classification of liability as non-current by requiring the 

assessment of the entity's right at the end of the reporting period to defer the settlement of liability for at least twelve 

months after the reporting period. An entity shall apply those amendments retrospectively in accordance with lAS 8. 



Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to lAS 37) effective for the annual period beginning on 

or after 1 January 2022 amends lAS 1 by mainly adding paragraphs which clarifies what comprise the cost of fulfilling a 

contract, cost of fulfilling a contract is relevant when determining whether a contract is onerous. An entity is required to 

apply the amendments to contracts for which it has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the annual 

reporting period in which it first applies the amendments (the date of initial application). Restatement of comparative 

information is not required, instead the amendments require an entity to recognize the cumulative effect of initially 

applying the amendments as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings or other component of equity, 

as appropriate, at the date of initial application. 

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to lAS 16) effective for the annual period 

beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Clarifies that sales proceeds and cost of items produced while bringing an item of 

property, plant and equipment to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner 

intended by management e.g. when testing etc, are recognized in profit or loss in accordance with applicable Standards. 

The entity measures the cost of those items by applying the measurement requirements of lAS 2. The standard also 

removes the requirement of deducting the net sales proceeds from cost of testing. An entity shall apply those 

amendments retrospectively, but only to items of property, plant and equipment that are brought to the location and 

condition necessary for them to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management on or after the 

beginning of the earliest period presented in the financial statements in which the entity first applies the amendments. 

The entity shall recognize the cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an adjustment to the opening 

balance of retained earnings (or other component of equity, as appropriate) at the beginning of that earliest period 

presented. 

The following annual improvements to IFRS standards 2018-2020 are effective for annual reporting periods beginning 

on or after 1 January 2022: 

IFRS 9—The amendment clarifies that an entity includes only fees paid or received between the entity (the 

borrower) and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the entity or the lender on the other's behalf, 

when it applies the .10 per cent' test in paragraph B3.3.6 of IFRS 9 in assessing whether to derecognise a financial 

liability. 

IFRS 16 — The amendment partially amends Illustrative Example 13 accompanying IFRS 16 by excluding the 

illustration of reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the lessor. The objective of the amendment is to 

resolve any potential confusion that might arise in lease incentives. 

- lAS 41 — The amendment removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of lAS 41 for entities to exclude taxation cash 

flows when measuring the fair value of a biological asset using a present value technique. 

The above amendments are effective from annual periods beginning on or after July 01, 2020 and are not likely to 

have an impact on Fund's financial statements. 

3.1 Standards and amendments effective during the year 

There are number of new standards and amendments that are effective from July 01, 2019 however these do not 

have a significant effect on the Fund's financial statements. 

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

4.1 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of profit and loss sharing account maintained with banks. Cash equivalents are 

short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant 

risk of changes in value, and are held for the purpose of meeting short term cash commitments rather than for 

investments and other purposes. 

4.2 Financial assets 

4.2.1 Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial assets are recognised at the time the Fund becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. These 

are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs except for financial assets carried at fair value through profit or 

loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value and transaction costs 

associated with these financial assets are charged to the Income Statement. 

i. Classification 

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost, FVOCI or FVTPL. 

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at 

FVTPL: 

- it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and 

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on 

the principal amount outstanding. 

I 



A debt security is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL: 

it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling 

financial assets; and 

its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on 

the principal amount outstanding. 

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Fund may irrevocably elect to present 

subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in OCI. This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis. 

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at FVTPL. 

On initial recognition, the Fund may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be 

measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting 

mismatch that would otherwise arise. 

Business model assessment 

The Fund makes an assessment of the objective of a business model in which an asset is held at a portfolio level 

because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to management. The 

information considered includes: 

- the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. In particular, 

whether management's strategy focuses on earning contractual interest revenue, maintaining a particular interest 

rate profile or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets; 

how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Fund's management; 

the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business 

model) and its strategy for how those risks are managed; 

- how managers of the business are compensated (e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of the 

assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected); and 

the frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and its expectations about 

future sales activity. However, information about sales activity is not considered in isolation, but as part of an 

overall assessment of how the Fund's stated objectives for managing the financial assets are achieved and how 

cash flows are realised. 

Financial assets that are held for trading or managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis are 

measured at FVTPL because they are neither held to collect contractual cash flows nor held both to collect contractual 

cash flows and to sell financial assets. 

Assessment of whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest 

For the purposes of this assessment on debt securities, 'principal' is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on 

initial recognition. 'Interest' is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated 

with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. 

liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as profit margin. 

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPPI, the Fund considers the contractual terms of the instrument. 

This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount 

of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making the assessment, the Fund considers: 

contingent events that would change the amount and timing of cash flows; 

leverage features; 

prepayment and extension terms; 

terms that limit the Fund's claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse loans); and 

features that modify consideration of the time value of money (e.g. periodical reset of interest rates). 

ii. Subsequent measurement 

The following accounting policies apply to the subsequent measurement of financial assets: 

Financial assets at FVTPL These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net  gains and losses, 

including any profit / markup or dividend income, are recognised in income 

statement. 



Financial assets at 

amortised cost 

Debt securities at FVOCI 

Equity investments at FVOCI 

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective yield 

method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest I  markup 

income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in 

income statement. 

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest / markup income 

calculated using the effective yield method, foreign exchange gains and losses and 

impairment are recognised in income statement. Other net gains and losses are 

recognised in OCI. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are 

reclassified to income statement. 

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised as 

income in income statement unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of 

part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI 

and are never reclassified to income statement. 

The fair value of financial assets are determined as follows: 

a) Debt securities (other than Government securities) 

Debt securities are valued on the basis of rates determined by the Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan (MUFAP) 

in accordance with the methodology prescribed by SECP for valuation of debt securities vide its Circular No. 33 of 

2012 dated October 24, 2012. In the determination of the rates, MUFAP takes into account the holding pattern of 

these securities and categorises them as traded, thinly traded and non-traded securities. The circular also specifies 

the valuation process to be followed for each category as well as the criteria for the provisioning of non-performing 

debt securities. 

b) Government securities 

The government securities are valued on the basis of rates announced by the Financial Markets Association of 

Pakistan. 

c) Equity securities 

The equity securities are valued on the basis of closing quoted market prices available at the Pakistan Stock 

Exchange. 

iii. Reclassifications 

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the period after the Fund changes 

its business model for managing financial assets. 

iv. Impairment of financial assets 

Financial assets at amortised cost 

Provision for non performing debt securities and other exposure is made in accordance with the criteria specified in 

Circular No. 33 of 2012 dated October 24, 2012, issued by SECP which are recently relaxed by the SECP amid ongoing 

situation of Covid19. However, the circular does not cover impairment requirements for government debt securities. 

Based on the past performance management considers that there is no probability of default as in any adverse situation 

State Bank of Pakistan has the right to discharge government obligations by issuance of currency notes. The 

provisioning policy has been duly formulated and approved by the Board of Directors of the Management Company. 

4.2.2 Regular way contracts 

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date - the date on which the Fund commits to 

purchase or sell the asset. 

4.2.3 Derecognition 

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been 

transferred and where the Fund has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. 
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4.2.4 Offsetting of financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities 

when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, 

or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

4.3 Financial liabilities 

Financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Fund becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 

instruments. These are initially recognised at fair values and subsequently stated at amortised cost. 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. 

4.4 Trade date accounting 

All regular way purchases and sales of investments are recognised on the trade date, i.e. the date on which commitment to 

purchase / sale is made by the Fund. Regular way purchases or sales of investment require delivery of securities within two 

days after transaction date as required by stock exchange regulations. 

4.5 Issuance and redemption of units 

Units issued are recorded at the offer price, determined by the Management Company for the applications received by the 

distributors / Management Company during business hours on that day. The offer price represents the net assets value per 

unit as of the close of the business day plus the allowable sales load, provision for transaction costs and any provision for 

duties and charges, if applicable. The sales load is payable to the investment facilitators, distributors and the Management 

Company. 

Units redeemed are recorded at the redemption price, applicable to units for which the distributors receive redemption 

applications during business hours of that day. The redemption price represents the net asset value per unit as of the close 

of the business day less any back-end load, any duties, taxes, charges on redemption and any provision for transaction 

costs, if applicable. 

4.6 Net Asset Value per unit 

The Net Asset Value per unit disclosed in the statement of assets and liabilities is calculated by dividing the net assets of 

the Fund by the number of units in issue at the year end. 

4.7 Revenue recognition 

- Realised gains / (losses) arising on sale of investments are included in the Income Statement on the date at which 

transactions take place. 

- Unrealised appreciation / (diminution) arising on re-measurement of investments classified as financial assets at fair 

value through profit or loss ' are included in the income statement in the period in which they arise. 

- Profit on bank deposits, term deposit receipts, mark-up / return on investments in debt securities and income from 

government securities is recognised using the effective yield method. 

4.8 Element of income 

Element of Income represents the difference between Net Asset Value (NAV) on the issuance or redemption date, as the 

case may be, of units and the Net Asset Value at the beginning of the relevant accounting period. 

Element of Income is a transaction of capital nature and the receipt and payment of element of income is taken to unit 

holders' fund; however, to maintain same ex-dividend net asset value of all units outstanding on accounting date, net 

element of income contributed on the issue of units lying in unit holders fund is refunded on units (refund of capital) in the 

same proportion as dividend bears to accounting income available for distribution. As per the guidelines provided by MUFAP 

(MUFAP Guidelines consented upon by SECP) the refund of capital is made in the form of additional units at zero price. 

Income already paid on redemption of units during the year are taken separately in the statement of movement in 

unitholders' fund. 

MUFAP, in consultation with the SECP, has specified methodology for determination of income paid on units redeemed 

(income already paid) during the year under which such income is paid on gross element received and is calculated from the 

latest date at which the Fund achieved net profitability during the year. The income already paid (Element of Income) on 

red mption of units during the year are taken separately in statement of movement in unitholders fund. 



4.9 Taxation 

The income of the Fund is exempt from income tax under clause 99 of Part I of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax 

Ordinance, 2001 subject to the condition that not less than ninety percent of its accounting income for the year, as 

reduced by capital gains, whether realised or unrealised, is distributed among the unit holders, provided that for the 

purpose of determining distribution of not less than 90% of its accounting income for the year, the income distributed 

through bonus units shall not be taken into account. 

The Fund is also exempt from the provisions of section 113 (minimum tax) under clause hA of Part IV of the Second 

Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. 

The Fund provides for deferred taxation using the balance sheet liability method on all major temporary differences 

between the amounts used for financial reporting purposes and amounts used for taxation purposes. In addition, the 

Fund also records deferred tax asset on unutilised tax losses to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related 

tax benefit will be realised. However, the Fund has not recognised any amount in respect of taxation in these financial 

statements as the Fund distributes more than ninety percent of its accounting income for the current year and intends 

to continue availing the tax exemption in future years by distributing at least ninety percent of its accounting income for 

the year as reduced by capital gains, whether realised or unrealised, to its unit holders every year. 

4.10 Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the Fund has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable 

that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and reliable estimate of the amount can be made. 

Provision are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. 

4.11 Dividend distribution 

Distributions declared subsequent to the year end reporting date are considered as non-adjusting events and are 

recognised in the financial statements of the period in which such distributions are declared. Based on MUFAPs 

guidelines (duly consented upon by SECP) distributions for the year is deemed to comprise of the portion of amount of 

income already paid on units redeemed and the amount of cash distribution for the year. 

The distribution per unit is announced based on units that were held for the entire period. The rate of distribution is 

adjusted for the effect of refund of capital if any based on the period of investment made during the year. Resultantly, 

the rate of distribution per unit may vary depending on the period of investment. 

4.12 Other assets 

Other assets are stated at cost less impairment losses, if any. 

4.13 Earnings per unit (EPU) 

Earnings Per Unit (EPU) has not been disclosed as in the opinion of the management, determination of weighted 

average units for calculating EPU is not practicable. 

5. BANK BALANCES 

Profit and loss sharing accounts 

Note 2020 2019 

(Rupees in '000)  

5.1 5,422 262,27 

    

5.1 These accounts carry profit rate ranging from 8.00% to 14.00% (30 June 2019: 7.10% to 12.80%) per annum. 

6. INVESTMENTS Note 2020 2019 

(Rupees in '000)  

Investments by category 

At fair value through profit or loss 

Listed equity securities 6.1 236 107,618 

At amortised cost 

Certificate of Musharika 

   

25,000 

  

236 132.618 
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Chief Financial Officer Director 

For AWl' Investments Limited 
(Management Company) 

For the year ended 30 June 2019 
Dates 24-Sep-18 26-Oct-18 15-Feb-i 9 18-Apr-i 9 

meeting 
Name of directors attended 

Mr. Tariq Iqbal Khan 4 1 1 1 1 
Major General Syed Taqi Naseer (Rtd) 4 1 1 
Mr. Malik Riffat Mehmood 3 1 1 1 - 
Mrs. Maleeha Humuyun Bangash 0 - - - N/A 
Members Attented 3 3 3 2 

* Ms. Maleeha Humayun Bangash resigned on February 15, 2019. 

21.7 Human resource and remuneration meeting attendances 

Following are the date and name of persons who attended the meeting of Human Resource and Remuneration during the year: 

For the year ended 30 June 2020 Dates 3-Feb-20 
meeting 
attended 

Name of directors 

Major General Akhtar lqbal (Retd.l 1 1 
Mr. Tariq lqbal Khan 1 1 
Mr. Salman Haider Shaikh 1 1 

3 

For the year ended 30 June 2019 Dates 12-Apr-19 
meeting 
attended 

Name of directors 

Mr. Major General (Retd) Syed Taqi Naseer Rizvi 1 
Mr. Tariq lqbal Khan 1 
Mr. Salman Haider Shaikh 1 

3 

21.8 Proxy Voting 

Details Resolution For Against Abstain* 

Number N/A  
Percentagesl%) 

*The  Proxy Voting policy is available on the website of AWl Investments Limited and detailed information regarding actual proxies voted by the 
company in respect of the Fund is also available without charge, upon request, to all unit holders. 

21.9 Fund and Asset Manager Rating 

The VIS Credit Rating Company Limited (VlSI vide its press release dated April 24, 2020 has assigned & reaffirmed rating of.AM3+ to the 
Management Company with stable outlook. 

22. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE 

These financial statements were authorized for issue by Board of Directors of the Management Company on 

23. CORRESPONDING FIGURES 

Corresponding figures have been rearranged or reclassified, where necessary, for the purpose of better presentation the effect of which is not 
material. 

24. GENERAL 

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand Rupees. 






